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PART NOTIFICATION

ITEM Significant Parties

The names and addresses of each of the directors officers record and beneficial owners

of five percent 5%or more of any class of the stock of Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp

Stadium Entertainment or the Company and of counsel to the Company are set forth

below

Officers and Directors

Name and Address Title

David Berman Chief Executive Officer and Director

Business Address

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New York NY 10010

Residential Address

5142 Calvin

Tarzan California 91356

Gary Katz Director

Business Address

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New York NY 10010

Residential Address

1020 Warburton Avenue

Yonkers New York 10701

Camille Barbone President and Director

Business Address

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New York NY 10010

Residential Address

206 Bryans Road

Hampton New Jersey 08827

Th



Five Percent 5%Record Owners

Common Stock
Percentage Interest

Name and Address

Stadium Entertainment Group LLC 37.5

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New York NY 10010

Sandstone Investment Partners LLC 37.5

425 Broad Hollow Road Suite 115

Melville NY 11747

Emerald Asset Advisors LLC 12 5.0

425 Broad Hollow Road Suite 115

Melville NY 11747

Michael Xirinachs 8.33

Business Address

425 Broad Hollow Road Suite 115

Melville NY 11747

Residential Address

271 Rivendell Ct

Melville NY 11747

North Atlantic Resources Ltd 5.0

P.O Box 1674

Kingstown

St Vincent and the Grenadines

Coastal Consulting Ltd 6.66

Trust House

112 Bonadie Street

Kingstown

St Vincent and the Grenadines

Five Percent 5%Beneficial Owners

Common Stock

Name and Address Percentage Interest

Stadium Entertainment Group LLC 37.5%

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New York NY 10010
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Gary Katz 12.5%

Business Address

888 Seventh Avenue 35thi Floor

New York NY 10010

Residential Address

1020 Warburton Avenue

Yonkers NY 10701

Camille Barbone 12.5%

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New YorkNY 10010

Residential Address

206 Bryans Road

Hampton New Jersey 08827

Jerome Mas 12.5%

Business Address

888 Seventh Avenue 35 Floor

NewYorkNY 10010

Residential Address

5865 East Mezzanine Way

Long Beach California 90808

Sandstone Investment Partners LLC 50.8%

425 Broad Hollow Road Suite 115

Melville NY 11747

Emerald Asset Advisors LLC 50.8%

425 Broad Hollow Road Suite 115

Melville NY 11747

Michael Xirinachs 50.8%

Business Address

425 Broad Hollow Road Suite 115

Melville NY 11747

Residential Address

271 Rivendell Ct

Melville NY 11747

North Atlantic Resources Ltd 6.66%

P.O Box 1674

Kingstown

St Vincent and the Grenadines
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Coastal Consulting Ltd 5.0%

Trust House

112 Bonadie Street

Kingstown

St Vincent and the Grenadines

Thomas Phillips
6.66%

Business Address

P.O Box 1674

Kingstown

St Vincent and the Grenadines

Residential Address

Trust House

112 Bonadie Street

Kingstown

St Vincent and the Grenadines

Stephen Bullock 5.0%

Business Address

Trust House

112 Bonadie Street

Kingstown

St Vincent and the Grenadines

Residential Address

Trust House

112 Bonadie Street

Kingstown

St Vincent and the Grenadines

This person/entity may be considered an affiliate of the Company

In September 2009 the Securities and Exchange Commission filed civil complaint

against Michael Xirinachs Emerald Asset Advisors LLC and four other parties alleging

that between February 2006 and June 2007 they engaged in an unregistered distribution

of shares of Universal Express Inc The complaint alleges that Mr Xirinachs entered

into private agreements to obtain shares for Emerald Asset Advisors Inc and North

Atlantic Resources Ltd and arranged for the sale of the shares without filing

registration statement Mr Xirinachs and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC are charged with

violating the securities registration provisions of Sections 5a and 5c of the Securities

Act of 1933 which prohibit interstate offers and sales of securities unless registration

statement is filed or in effect The Commission seeks permanent injunctions against all

defendants disgorgement of ill-gotten gains civil penalties and penny stock bars Mr

Xirinachs has advised the Company that he and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC intend to

vigorously defend the action

iv
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Represents each of such individuals pecuniary interest in shares owned by Stadium

Entertainment Corp LLC Each of these individuals has one-third 1/3 ownership

interest in Stadium Entertainment Group LLC

Includes shares owned by each of Sandstone Investment Partners LLC Emerald Asset

Advisors LLC and Michael Xirinachs Michael Xirinachs is the managing member of

each of Sandstone Investment Partners LLC and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC

Thomas Phillips is the individual that has voting and dispositive power over the shares

owned by North Atlantic Resources Ltd

Stephen Bullock is the individual that has voting and dispositive power over the shares

owned by Coastal Consulting Ltd

Represents shares owned of record by North Atlantic Resources Ltd

Represents shares owned of record by Coastal Consulting Ltd

Counsel to the Company

Giordano Halleran Ciesla P.C

125 Half Mile Road Suite 300 Red Bank NJ 07701

There are no general partners promoters or otherwise than as set forth above affiliates

associated with the Company and no underwriters associated with this offering

ITEM Application of Rule 262

None of the above-referenced persons is subject to any of the disqualification provisions

set forth in Rule 262 as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission

ITEM Affiliate Sales

Not applicable

ITEM Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

The securities are being offered to residents of New York California Florida and Illinois

by Gary Katz director and former officer of the Company and Camille Barbone the

Companys President however no offers will be made in California or Illinois unless the

Company files an amendment to this Offering Statement which includes audited financial

statements It is anticipated that potential investors having pre-existing business relationships

with the officers and other affiliates of the Company as well as potential investors referred by

parties having pre-existing business relationships with those officers and other affiliates of the

Company will be solicited by telephone e-mail mail and personal meetings The Company will

not employ the services of underwriters dealers or independent salesmen in connection with the

offering The Company has registered as dealer in New York and filed Form M- 11 Issuer

Statement as well as State Notice Further State Notice under Section 359e of the New York



General Business Law in connection with this offering To the extent that the Company offers

the securities in California or Illinois it will be required to register
the securities in those states

The Company sought interpretive guidance from the Florida Office of Financial Regulation as to

whether it may offer the securities in Florida in reliance upon private offering exemption and

on October 13 2009 the Office of Financial Regulation advised that it would take no action

against the Company if it relies upon private offering exemption provided that the Company

does not offer the Common Stock to more than 35 investors in Florida no general solicitation as

such term is interpreted by the Florida Office of Financial Regulation or advertising takes place

in Florida and each purchaser of common stock is provided full and fair disclosure of all material

information without any person being paid commission or compensation for sales made in

connection with the proposed offering In light
of the fact that the Form 1-A Offering Statement

is available through the Public Reference Room and certain electronic research services the

Company is consulting with the Florida Office of Financial Regulation as to the Companys

ability to rely on the private offering exemption in accordance with the guidance previously

provided The Company will rely on the private offering exemption only if the Florida Office of

Financial Regulation confirms that the Company may continue to rely on the guidance

previously provided In the absence of such confirmation the Company will offer the common

stock in Florida only if it registers the stock in such state

ITEM Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

The Company issued an aggregate of 75000000 shares of Common Stock to Stadium

Entertainment Group LLC formerly the sole shareholder of Stadium Entertainment Corp in

connection with share exchange transaction effective January 2009 pursuant to which the

Company acquired all of the outstanding common stock of Stadium Entertainment Corp The

Company relied upon the exemption provided by Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933 in

connection with such transaction No general solicitation was involved in this transaction and

the shares were issued to the sole shareholder of Stadium Entertainment Corp which was owned

by three individuals who qualify as accredited investors as that term is defined in Rule 501

promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

In February 2009 the Company issued convertible notes in the aggregate principal

amount of $200000 to three lenders No general solicitation was involved in this transaction and

the notes were issued only to accredited investors as that term is defined in Rule 504

promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended The Company relied upon the

exemption provided by Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended in making such

issuance

In August 2008 the Company issued 6666667 shares of Common Stock to four

investors for an aggregate purchase price of $20000 Of these shares 2222222 shares were

issued to North Atlantic Resources Ltd 1111111 shares were issued to Coastal Consulting

Ltd 2222222 shares were issued to Emerald Asset Advisors LLC and 1111112 were issued

to Michael Xirinachs No general solicitation was involved in this transaction and sales were

made only to accredited investors as that term is defined in Rule 501 promulgated under the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended The Company relied upon the exemption provided by

Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended in connection with such transaction

vi



In August 2009 the Company issued options to acquire 1000000 shares of Common

Stock to Wayman Jones an individual that provides consulting services to the Company in the

areas of radio promotion and radio marketing ii options to acquire 1000000 shares of

Common Stock to John Betancourt an individual that provides consulting services to the

Company in the areas of sales marketing and radio promotion and iii options to acquire

1000000 shares of Common Stock to Michael Omansky an individual who provides consulting

services in the areas of internet and corporate marketing Each of these individuals provides

valuable professional services to the Company and advises the Companys in-house staff in his

area of expertise The options which have term of ten years have an exercise price of $.25 per

share Options with respect to 340000 shares granted to each consultant vested immediately

upon grant and options with respect to 330000 shares granted to each consultant vest on each of

the six month and one year anniversary date of the date of grant The Company relied upon the

exemption provided by Rule 701 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended in

granting the options None of the recipients of the options has provided services to the Company

in connection with the offer or sale of securities in capital raising transaction and none of such

individuals has directly or indirectly promoted or maintained market for the Companys

securities The options were issued under Compensatory Benefit Plan as defined in Rule

701 delivered to each recipient of the options and the aggregate price of the securities issued in

reliance upon Rule 701 determined to be $750000 in accordance with Rule 701d3i based

upon the exercise price of the options did not exceed $1000000 and the aggregate amount of

the securities issued in reliance upon Rule 701 did not exceed 15% of the outstanding amount of

the class of securities offered The Company also believes that it may rely on the exemption

provided by Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended in connection with the

issuance of the options inasmuch as the options were made to only three individuals

considered sophisticated by management based upon its business dealings with such individuals

and iino general solicitation was involved in the transaction

ITEM Other Present or Proposed Offerings

The Company is not currently offering or contemplating the offering of any securities in

addition to those covered by this Form 1-A

ITEM Marketing Arrangements

Not applicable

ITEM Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in the Offering Statement

Not applicable

ITEM Use of Solicitation of Interest Document

No publications authorized by Rule 254 as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange

Commission were used prior to the filing of this notification

vi
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PRELIMINARY OFFERINGCIRCULAR

STADIUM ENTERTAINMENT HOLDING CORP

Offering of Common Stock

Minimum Offering $2000000 8000000 shares

Maximum Offering $3000000 12000000 shares

Offering Price $.25 per Share

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp Nevada corporation whose principal place of

business is located at 888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor New York New York 10010 and

telephone number is 212 453-2500 is offering shares of its Common Stock $.001 par value

per share CommonStock on best efforts-$2000000 minimum/$3000000 maximum

basis No shares will be sold unless we sell shares having an aggregate minimumpurchase

price of $2000000 Funds received from subscribers will be held in segregated account

until the $2000000 minimumaggregate investment requirement is met however we will not

use an escrow arrangement during this period In the event that we do not receive minimum

of $2000000 of subscriptions by __________ 2009 or __________2009 if we extend the

offering period we will promptly return to subscribers the subscription amount without

interest Unless earlier terminated for failure to meet the $2000000 subscription

requirement the offering will terminate on ___________2010 We may in our discretion

permit subscribers to pay for shares through the exchange of up to $220000 aggregate

principal amount of outstanding promissory notes at rate of $.25 per share however no such

subscriptions will be taken into account in determining whether we have received the

$2000000 aggregate investment requirement

The purchase of Common Stock offered hereby will result in an investment in

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corpwhich involves certain significant risks See

Risk Factors on page for certain information that should be considered before

purchasing shares of Common Stock offered hereby

Underwriting

Discount and Proceeds to

Price to Public Commissions1 Company2

Per Share of Common Stock $.25 None $.25

Total Minimum Offering $2000000 None $1930000

Total Maximum Offering $3000000 None $2930000

The shares of common stock being offered hereby will be offered and sold by the officers and directors of Stadium Entertainment No

commissions or other compensation will be paid to the officers and directors of Stadium Entertainment in connection with the

offering

After deduction of approximately $50000 in estimated expenses to be incuffed in connection with the offering which includes

approximately $65000 for legal and accounting fees and related expenses and approximately $5000 for printing postage and related

costs

The cash proceeds to the Company may be reduced by up to $220000 in the event that the purchase price for any shares issued in the

offering is paid for through the exchange of outstanding promissory notes



INVESTMENT IN SMALL BUSINESSES INVOLVES HIGH DEGREE OF RISK AND

INVESTORS SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN THIS OFFERING UNLESS THEY

CAN AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT SEE THE SECTION TITLED

RISK FACTORS FOR THE RISK FACTORS THAT MANAGEMENT BELIEVES

PRESENT THE MOST SUBSTANTIAL RISKS TO AN INVESTOR IN THIS OFFERING

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN
EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING INCLUDING

THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN

RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES

COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY FURTHERMORE THESE

AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT PASSED UPON THE ACCURACYOR ADEQUACY OF THIS

DOCUMENT ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS CRIMINAL

OFFENSE

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS

UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR
THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACYOR
COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING LITERATURE

THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION HOWEVER THE COMMISSION HAS NOT

MADE AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED

HEREUNDER ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION

FOR FLORIDA RESIDENTS ONLY

THIS OFFERINGIS LIMITED TO ACCREDITED INVESTORS AS DEFINED IN

RULE 501a OF REGULATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

UNDER RULE 501a TO BE AN ACCREDITED INVESTOR AN INDIVIDUAL

MUST HAVE NET WORTH OR JOINT NET WORTH WITH THE
INDIVIDUALS SPOUSE OF MORE THAN $1000000 OR INCOME OF MORE
THAN $200000 IN EACH OF THE TWO MOST RECENT YEARS OR JOINT

INCOME WITH THE INDIVIDUALS OF MORE THAN $300000 IN EACH OF

THOSE YEARS AND REASONABLE EXPECTATION OF REACHING THE

SAME INCOME LEVEL IN THE CURRENT YEAR IN ADDITION THIS

OFFERING IS LIMITED TO PERSONS WHO HAVE SUCH KNOWLEDGE AND
EXPERIENCE IN FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS MATTERS AS TO BE CAPABLE

OF EVALUATING THE MERITS AND RISKS OF THE PROSPECTIVE

INVESTMENT



THE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE FLORIDA

SECURITIES ACT IN RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIVE PROVISIONS CONTAINED

THEREIN IF SALES ARE MADE TO FIVE OR MORE PERSONS IN FLORIDA

PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION 517.06111A5 OF THE FLORIDA SECURITIES

ACT ANY SUCH SALE MAY BE VOIDED BY THE PURCHASER WITHIN
THREE DAYS AFTER THE FIRST TENDER OF CONSIDERATION IS MADE
BY THE PURCHASER TO THE ISSUER AN AGENT OF THE ISSUER OR AN

ESCROW AGENT OR WITHIN THREE DAYS AFTER THE AVAILABILITY

OF THIS PRIVILEGE IS COMMUNICATED TO THE PURCHASER
WHICHEVER IS LATER

Sales to the public of shares of Common Stock will commence on or about _______ 2009

The date of this Offering Circular is December 2009
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OFFERING CIRCULAR SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information contained elsewhere in this Offering

Circular To understand this offering fully you should read the entire Offering Circular

carefully including the risk factors and financial information

The Issuer Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp Nevada

corporation

Securities Offered Minimum Offering shares of Common Stock with an

aggregate minimum purchase price of $2000000

8000000 shares

Maximum Offering shares of Common Stock with an

aggregate minimumpurchase price of $3000000

12000000 shares

Purchase Price The offering price is $.25 per share

Minimum Subscription $10000

Use of Proceeds The proceeds from this offering will be used for

repayment of indebtedness product acquisition costs

marketing and promotion and working capital purposes

See Use of Proceeds to Issuer

Risk of Investment The purchase of shares of our common stock involves

certain significant risks See Risk Factors

Plan of Distribution and Initial We plan to offer the shares through our officers and

Termination Date directors to shareholders persons and businesses in the

State of New York California Illinois and Florida

however we will not offer the shares in California or

Illinois unless we file an amendment to this Offering

Circular which includes audited financial statements

and register the shares in such states Each subscriber

must purchase number of shares having minimum

purchase price of $10000 We will offer the shares in

Florida only if we receive confirmation of certain

interpretive guidance that the Florida Office of

Financial Regulation previously provided in connection

with this offering or we register the shares in Florida

following the filing of an amendment to this Offering

Circular which contains audited financial statements

We may accept or reject all or part of any subscription

in our discretion If we elect not to accept

13



subscription all funds received by us from the

subscriber will be returned to the subscriber without

interest If shares having minimum aggregate

purchase price of $2000000 have not been subscribed

for on or before ___________ 2009 the Initial

Termination Date we will promptly return to

subscribers the subscription amount without interest

however we may elect to extend the Initial

Termination Date until __________ 2009 and in such

event the return of subscription amounts will not be

made until promptly after the extended Initial

Termination Date We may in our discretion permit

subscribers to pay for shares through the exchange of

up to $220000 aggregate principal amount of

promissory notes at rate of $.25 per share however

no such subscriptions will be taken into account in

determining whether we have received the $2000000

aggregate investment requirement Such subscriptions

will be taken into account for purposes of determining

whether the $3000000 maximum amount of the

offering has been achieved See Plan of Distribution

Offering Termination Date If we receive subscriptions for at least $2000000 by

the Initial Termination Date the offering will terminate

at 530 p.m New York City time on 2010

Subscribers purchasing shares of Common Stock will

be issued stock certificates representing the shares as

soon as practicable after acceptance of their

subscriptions by the Company See Plan of

Distribution



RISK FACTORS

Investing in our Common Stock involves high degree of risk You should carefully

consider the risks described below with all of the other information included in this Offering

Circular before making an investment decision If any of the possible adverse events described

below actually occurs our business results of operations or financial condition would likely

suffer In such an event you could lose all or part of your investment

Risks Related to Our Business

We have limited operating history and have operating losses and accumulated deficit and

we may not achieve or maintain profitability in the future

We began our business operations in January 2008 and have limited operating history

Since our inception we have not recognized any revenues and incurred net loss of

approximately $1400000 during the year ended December 31 2008 and $898786 during the

nine months ended September 30 2009 We have operated at deficit since our inception and

we expect to continue to operate at deficit until such time if ever that our operations generate

sufficient revenues to cover our costs The likelihood of our success must be considered in light

of the difficulties and risks inherent in new business There can be no assurance that revenues

will ever achieve profitable operations

We may be unable to raise additional capital or generate the significant revenues necessary to

fund our operations and finance new projects in which case the funds from this offering may

not be sufficient to enable us to sustain operations

It will be necessary for us to raise additional capital to support our operations and we

will not be able to continue to operate if we are unable to raise additional capital We will

require additional capital to execute our agreements with artists or their record companies who

agree to participate in and contribute to our compilation projects We believe that the net

proceeds from this offering together with revenues from operations will be sufficient to fund

our operations for approximately 12 months if the minimum offering amount is raised and 24

months if the maximum offering amount is raised However we do not have an established

operating history we have generated only modest revenues to date and it is possible that we will

not generate anticipated revenues and our business or operations may change in manner that

would consume available resources more rapidly than anticipated Inasmuch as potential

revenue streams are speculative cash generated from operations may not be sufficient to fund

future projects and we may need additional funds sooner than planned to meet operational needs

and capital requirements for product development and marketing Additional funds may not be

available when needed or on terms acceptable to us If adequate funds are not available we may

have to cease operations or reduce substantially or eliminate expenditures for the development

and production of certain of our proposed projects which could have material adverse effect on

our business operating results financial condition and future growth prospects
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We are currently in default under loan agreement with significant shareholder as well as

indebtedness owed to other parties and significant portion of the proceeds of this offering

will be used to repay this debt

Sandstone LLC has loaned us an aggregate of $1489800 under loan agreement which

provides for interest at rate of 10% per annum Of this amount $1364800 became due in

February 2009 The loan is secured by all of our right title and interest in our compilation audio

album commemorating the Negro League Baseball Museum and any sequels thereto including

our rights in the master recordings included in the album our agreement with the Negro Baseball

League Museum and all contracts products and proceeds of the foregoing Although

Sandstone LLC has extended the date by which accrued interest and $125000 of principal must

be paid until the earlier of our receipt of $2500000 of cash proceeds from this offering or June

30 2010 Sandstone LLC has not agreed to extend the maturity date of $1364800 of the

principal amount of the loan and no assurance can be given that Sandstone LLC will not elect to

pursue remedies against us substantial portion of the proceeds of this offering will be used to

repay this debt which will reduce the amount of funds available to support our business

operations In addition $400000 of other borrowings are past due as of the date of this

Offering Circular Holders of $220000 principal amount of this indebtedness are being offered

the opportunity to pay the subscription price of shares offered hereby through the exchange of

such indebtedness An additional $180000 of indebtedness is represented by notes that are

convertible into common stock at price equal to the greater of 75% of the closing price per

share of our common stock on the first day of reported trading or $.25 per share If holders of

our outstanding notes/indebtedness do not exchange or convert the notes for stock or agree to an

extension of the notes we may be required to utilize portion of the proceeds of this offering to

repay such indebtedness and defer the release of our projects or reduce marketing and

promotional expenses See Use of Proceeds

We face significant competition from major record companies and independent labels

The music industry is dominated by the major record companies and their subsidiaries

These competitors are well-established in the market have significantly greater financial and

other resources and larger music catalogs than we do They have been in existence for

substantially longer period of time and enjoy certain name recognition that will only accrue to

us over time if at all We also compete with other significant independent record labels some of

which have also been in existence for longer period of time than us In addition we experience

competition from music publishing companies and various media companies both emerging and

established which are seeking to develop interactive and enhanced format music and

entertainment products

We face intense competition for discretionary consumer spending from numerous other

record companies and other forms of entertainment offered by film companies online

information service providers video companies and others Many of our current and potential

competitors in the music entertainment and online information services businesses have longer

operating histories significantly greater financial technical and marketing resources greater

name recognition and larger existing customer bases than us In addition these competitors may
be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer



requirements and to devote greater resources to the development promotion and sale of their

products than we can

Our ability to compete successfully will largely depend on our ability to build upon and

maintain our reputation for quality music entertainment products and to introduce music

entertainment products which are accepted by consumers There can be no assurance that we

will be able to compete successfully if at all with competitors in the field

We are subject to the risks that are inherent to the music and entertainment industry

The prerecorded music industry like other creative industries involves substantial

degree of risk Each recording is an individual artistic work and its commercial success is

primarily determined by consumer taste which is unpredictable and constantly changing

Accordingly there can be no assurance as to the financial success of any particular release the

timing of such success or the popularity of any particular artist There can be no assurance that

any of the prerecorded music products we release will produce sales revenue for us or if they do

that such revenue will be sufficient to recoup any costs we incurred

Furthermore the timing of new releases can cause significant fluctuations in quarterly

operating results Our results of operations from period to period may be materially affected by

the timing of new record releases and if such releases are delayed beyond the peak holiday

season our operating results could be materially adversely affected Additionally due to the

success of particular artists artists touring schedules and the timing of music television specials

it is possible that we could also experience material fluctuations in revenue from year to year

There can be no assurance that we will be able to generate sufficient revenues from successful

releases to cover the costs of unsuccessful releases

We have no manufacturing or distribution capabilities

We have no distribution facility for our record label and accordingly we are dependent

upon maintaining our existing relationships with our distributors and/or establishing and

maintaining new distribution relationships with comparable distributors We currently have an

agreement with EMI Global Music Services for the manufacture distribution licensing and

warehousing of our products There can be no assurance that we can maintain our relationship

with our current distributor beyond the term of our existing agreement which will expire in

March 2012 The termination of this relationship would absent establishing substitute

relationship with one or more of the few other major distributors in the industry have material

adverse effect on our business

We may not be successful in expanding and growing our business or we may not be capable

of successfully managing our growth

Rapid growth of our business may significantly strain our management personnel and

other resources There can be no assurance that we will achieve rapid growth or successfully

manage our growth The growth of our business would result in an increase in the level of

responsibility for existing management personnel and the need to hire additional qualified

management personnel Failure to manage growth and expansion would have material adverse

effect on our business



We depend on our key personnel the loss of any of whom would impair our business

Our business is substantially dependent on our management personnel including David

Berman Gary Katz and Camille Barbone to discover new artistic talent to develop and maintain

business relationships within the industry and with artists and to develop artists music and

recordings among other things We are not currently party to employment agreements with

these individuals although we expect to enter employment agreements with Mr Berman and Ms

Barbone during 2009 We do not carry key person life insurance on any of our employees The

loss of the services of any member of our management team would have material adverse

effect on our business and our professional reputation in the industry There is intense

competition for such personnel in the areas of our activities and we may be unable to adequately

replace the services provided by any member of our management team

Piracy of ourproducts particularly over the Internet could significantly reduce our revenues

from sales

Infringement of our copyrights in the form of unauthorized reproduction of our musical

entertainment products including artists recordings may occur If we achieve significant

commercial success with one or more of our musical entertainment products or recordings such

products or recordings could be target
of pirating or copying and sale in violation of our

copyrights in such products or recordings Although we expect to make online sales of our

products via our website we anticipate that our products will be pirated and distributed for free

over the Internet It is impossible to estimate the potential loss in sales that could result from

illegal copying and sales of our products or recordings We intend to enforce all copyrights

owned by or licensed to us which are material to our business against unlawful infringement

There can be no assurance however that we will be successful in protecting our copyrights

Our business could be impaired if we become subject to burdensome regulations and/or legal

uncertainties concerning management of music industry artists

There are currently no specific government regulations regarding the dissemination of

recorded music with the exception of certain efforts by the Recording Industry Association of

America RIAA to restrict unlawful peer-to-peer distribution of digitized music However the

passing of new government regulations laws or licensing requirements applicable to the

distribution of recorded music products could have material adverse effect on our business

We may be unable to enter into agreements with established music artists to participate in our

projects

Part of our business strategy is to seek top-selling established artists to contribute to and

participate in our recorded music projects and rely on the superior name recognition of such

artists among consumers to make our products profitable There can be no assurance that we

will be able to enter into agreements with such artists for any particular project and our inability

to secure the participation of such artists would have material adverse effect on our business

Risks Related to the Offering



The Securities and Exchange Commission may suspend this offering as result of improper

acts allegedly taken by holders of majority of our outstanding shares in connection with

distribution of stock of another company

In September 2009 the Securities and Exchange Commission filed civil complaint

against Michael Xirinachs Emerald Asset Advisors LLC and four other parties alleging that

between February 2006 and June 2007 they engaged in an unregistered distribution of shares of

Universal Express Inc Mr Xirinachs and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC beneficially own

50.8% of our outstanding Common Stock Mr Xirinachs is the managing member of Emerald

Asset Advisors LLC The complaint alleges that Mr Xirinachs entered into private agreements

to obtain shares for Emerald Asset Advisors Inc and North Atlantic Resources Ltd which

beneficially owns 6.60% of our Common Stock and arranged for the sale of the shares without

filing registration statement Mr Xirinachs and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC are charged

with violating the securities registration provisions of Sections 5a and 5c of the Securities Act

of 1933 which prohibit interstate offers and sales of securities unless registration statement is

filed or in effect The Commission seeks permanent injunctions against all defendants

disgorgement of ill-gotten gains civil penalties and penny stock bars Mr Xirinachs has advised

the Company that he and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC intend to vigorously defend the action

As result of the action pending against Mr Xirinachs and Emerald Asset Advisors the

Securities and Exchange Commission may take action under Rule 258 promulgated under the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended to suspend this offering As result no assurance can be

given that this offering will be completed

The offering price for the securities offered has been arbitrarily determined

The offering price paid for the shares of Common Stock offered in this offering was

determined by our board of directors and does not necessarily bear any relationship to the

Companys asset value net worth or other established criteria of value and should not be

considered indicative of the actual value of our company

Purchasers of shares in this offering will suffer immediate dilution in the net tangible book

value of shares purchased

At September 30 2009 the net tangible book value per share of our Common Stock was

negative amount $0.02 Net tangible book value at such date represents our tangible assets

less our liabilities divided by the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at that date

After this offering there will be an immediate increase in the net tangible book value of shares

held by existing shareholders and immediate substantial dilution in net tangible book value of

shares acquired by purchasers in this offering from the initial offering price of $.25 per share

See Dilution

Additional financing and issuance of stock may result in dilution of investors interests in the

Company

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 500000000 shares of

Common Stock Our board of directors has the authority to issue additional shares of our capital

stock to provide additional financing in the future The holders of shares of Common Stock have



no preemptive rights which means that their proportionate ownership interest and voting power

in our company may diminish if we issue additional shares of stock in future rounds of financing

There can be no assurance that our Common Stock will significantly appreciate in value or

that investors will be able to find purchasers for their shares of our Common Stock purchased

in this offering

Currently there is no public market for our Common Stock and only small number of

investors currently hold shares of our Common Stock The limited market for our Common

Stock could make the share price more volatile We cannot guarantee that an active public

market will develop or be sustained Therefore investors may not be able to find purchasers for

their shares of our Common Stock purchased in this offering Should there develop significant

market for our Common Stock the market price for those shares may be significantly affected by

such factors as our financial results and introduction of new products and services While we

intend to apply to FINRA to have our stock publicly traded on the Over-the-Counter Electronic

Bulletin Board at some point in the future there can be no assurance that such regulatory

approval will ever be received If our Common Stock becomes publicly traded there can be no

assurance that it will ever be traded on an established national securities exchange or that our

business strategy will be well received by the investment community

Dividends on capital stock may not be declared

We have paid no dividends on our capital stock since our inception and presently intend

to retain earnings if any for operation and expansion of our business Accordingly we do not

intend to pay dividends in the foreseeable future

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements under the sections in this offering circular captioned Risk

Factors Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Description of Business and elsewhere in this offering circular constitute

forward-looking statements Those statements could be affected by known and unknown risks

uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results levels of activity performance

or achievements to be materially different from any future results levels or activity performance

or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements Such factors include

among other things those listed under Risk Factors and elsewhere in this offering circular

In some cases you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as

may willshould could expects plans anticipates believes estimates

predicts potential or continue or the negative of such terms or other comparable

terminology

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are

reasonable we cannot guarantee future results levels of activity performance or achievements

Moreover nether we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and

completeness of such statements

dv
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DILUTION

As of September 30 2009 the net tangible book value per share of our Common Stock

was approximately $.02 After giving effect to the sale of the minimum number of shares of

Common Stock offered hereby at the offering price of $.25 per share and after deducting

estimated offering expenses of $50000 the pro forrna net tangible book value per share of

Common Stock at such date would have been $.00 This represents an immediate increase in

net tangible book value of $.02 per share to existing shareholders and an immediate dilution of

$.25 per share to the subscribers to this offering

After giving effect to the sale of the maximum number of shares of Common Stock

offered hereby at an offering price of $.25 per share and after deducting estimated offering

expenses of $50000 the pro forma net tangible book value per share of Common Stock at such

date would have been $.0 This represents an immediate increase in pro forma net tangible

book value of $.03 per share to existing shareholders and an immediate dilution of $0.24 per

share to the subscribers to this offering

The following tables illustrate this per share dilution assuming 8000000 shares are

sold in the offering and ii 12000000 shares are sold in the offering

8000000 12000000

shares sold shares sold

Offering price per share $.25 $.25

Net tangible book value per share before offering $.02 $.02

Increase per share attributable to the payment by New Investors $.02 $.03

Pro forma net tangible book value per share after offering $.00 $.01

Dilution of book value per share to New Investors $.25 $.24

Net tangible book value per share represents our tangible assets less our liabilities divided by the number

of shares of stock outstanding after giving effect to the sale of 8000000 and 12000000 shares of our

Common Stock at the offering price of $.25 per share

Dilution was determined by subtracting pro forma net tangible book value per share after completion of the

offering from the initial offering price per
share of Common Stock

USE OF PROCEEDS TO ISSUER

We will use our best efforts to raise minimum of $2000000 and maximum of

$3000000 in this offering For illustrative purposes only the table below summarizes how we

will utilize the proceeds of this offering in the event that 8000000 10000000 and 12000000

shares are sold The actual amount of proceeds realized may differ from the amounts

summarized below and the cash proceeds of the offering will be reduced to the extent that the

subscription price of shares is paid through the conversion of up to $220000 aggregate principal

amount of outstanding promissory notes at conversion price of $.25 per share No such

conversions will be taken into account in determining whether we have received the $2000000



aggregate investment requirement but the conversions will be taken into account for purposes of

determining whether the $3000000 maximum amount of the offering has been achieved

10000000

8000000 Share 12000000

Share Offering Offering Share Offering

Amount Amount Amount

Purpose $2000000 Percent $2500000 Percent $3000000 Percent

Product Acquisition 140000 7.0% 140000 5.6% 280000 9.3%

Costs

Marketing and 140000 7.0% 140000 5.6% 240000 8.0%

Promotion

Repayment of 1585000 79.3% $1925000 77.0% $1925000 64.2%

Indebtedness

Investor Relations 50000 1.7%

Research and $100000 3.3%

Development

Working Capital 65000 3.2% 225000 9.0% 335000 11.2%

Offering Expenses 70000 3.5% 70000 2.8% 70000 2.3%

TOTAL 2000000 100.0% $2500000 100.0% $3000000 100.0%

The amounts set forth above are estimates by management for the allocations of the net

proceeds of this offering based upon the current state of our business operations our

plans and current economic and industry conditions It is possible that the application of

funds may vary depending on numerous factors including but not limited to changes in

the economic climate or unanticipated complications delay and expense As result we

reserve the right to change the use of proceeds as follows

if the holders of $180000 principal amount of convertible notes which bear

interest at rate of 10% per annum and which are past due elect to exercise

remedies under such notes or become past due i.e an additional $50000

principal amount we would increase the amount of proceeds used to repay

indebtedness by the amount of indebtedness we are required to repay i.e up to

$180000 plus accrued interest if all holders of the notes demand payment and

decrease the amounts allocated to other items in an aggregate like amount in the

following order of priority research and development investor relations working

capital and marketing and promotion

if the cost of product acquisition which is subject to negotiation with third parties

increases over anticipated amounts as result of negotiations we would decrease

the amounts allocated to other items by the amount of the increase in the

following order of priority research and development investor relations working

capital and marketing and promotion

if the holders of $220000 of notes that are past due do not demand repayment of

such notes we will defer payment of the notes until such time as the holders

demand repayment and/or iioffer such holders the opportunity to exchange the

notes for shares in this offering as described below
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if the holders of $220000 aggregate principal amount of promissory notes acquire

shares in this offering through the exchange of such notes for common stock at

rate of $.25 per share it will reduce the cash proceeds of this offering by the

principal amount of the notes exchanged i.e by up to $220000 Inasmuch as

subscriptions paid through the exchange of notes will not be taken into account in

determining whether we have received the minimum $2000000 in subscriptions

the issuance of shares in exchange for notes will have no impact on the cash

proceeds of this offering unless we receive in excess of $2000000 of cash

subscriptions The following table sets forth our expected allocation of the cash

proceeds of the offering assuming that holders of $220000 aggregate principal

amount of notes pay the subscription price of their shares through the exchange of

all of such notes

10000000 Share 12000000 Share

Offering Amount Offering Amount

$2280000 cash $2780000 cash

Purpose proceeds Percent proceeds Percent

Product Acquisition Costs 140000 6.1% 280000 10.1%

Marketing and Promotion 140000 6.1% 240000 8.6%

Repayment of Indebtedness 1705000 74.8% 1705000 61.3%

Investor Relations

Research and Development

Working Capital 225000 9.9% 485000 17.5%

Offering Expenses
70000 3.1% 70000 2.5%

TOTAL 2380000 100.0% 2880000 100.0%

if offering expenses exceed the amount projected we would decrease the amounts

allocated to other items in the following order of priority research and

development investor relations working capital and marketing and promotion

if the initial results of our research and development activities do not appear

promising we may cease such activities and reallocate the $100000 designated

for research and development activities if we raise at least $3000000 in this

offernig to working capital

We will not change the use of proceeds other than as described above

Represents amounts to be paid to obtain musical tracks for our Country compilation

project and if the maximum offering amount is raised our True to the Game Volume

II project Product acquisition costs include studio rental fees musician salaries

equipment rental fees licensing fees payable to record companies or the master owner

producer fees engineer salaries and mixing costs

Represents in the case of the first table presented above amounts due under notes in

the principal amount of $220000 which are past due and bear interest at rate of 10%

per annum and ii in the case of both tables presented above proposed payments under

loan made by related party including $1364800 represented by note which became

11



due in February 2009 and which bears interest at rate of 10% per annum The related

party loan is secured by all of our right title and interest in our True to the Game

compilation The lender has agreed to extend the date by which accrued interest and an

additional $125000 advance under the loan agreement must be paid until the earlier of

our receipt of cash proceeds of $2500000 or more from this offering or June 30 2010

Research and development represents expenditures to develop unique and alternative

methods for delivering music to consumers including marketing and sales opportunities

and legal and security issues related to USB bracelet designed by third party which

can store and play full length musical albums and other media

Consists primarily of salaries legal and accounting fees and expenses and costs incurred

in connection with the physical distribution of compact discs including packing and

shipping To the extent that financial resources allow we plan to hire additional staff and

establish incentive compensation and bonus plans for our executive officers and other key

employees who contribute to the growth and success of our business No bonus or

incentive plans have yet been developed and neither the amount nor any recipients of the

potential awards have been determined If we raise $2000000 in this offering we

expect to use approximately $20000 of the amount allocated for working capital

purposes for salaries and bonuses including the payment of $10000 of the approximately

$33000 of earned but unpaid salary owed to our President Camille Barbone and the

remainder for professional fees estimated at $30000 and distribution costs estimated at

$5000 if we raise $2500000 in this offering we plan to use approximately $125000

for salaries and bonuses including the payment of approximately $33000 of earned but

unpaid salary and all or part of the $100000 per annum salary payable to our President

Camille Barbone during the 12 month period following this offering and the remainder

for professional fees estimated at $50000 and distribution costs estimated at $50000

If we raise $3000000 in this offering we plan to use approximately $170000 of the

amount designated for working capital purposes for salaries and bonuses including the

payment of approximately $33000 of earned but unpaid salary and all or part of the

$100000 per annum salary payable to Camille Barbone during the 12 month period

following this offering and the remainder for professional fees estimated at $65000

and distribution costs estimated at $100000 We will not use the proceeds of this

offering to pay Camille Barbone salary for any period after the expiration of the 12

month period following this offering In each case the amount used for salaries and

bonuses may include salary and bonuses which may be paid to officers that we may hire

in the future if any The amount of such salaries and bonuses will depend upon the terms

of the arrangements negotiated with such potential officers our operating results the

qualifications and individual performance of such officers and market conditions existing

at the time we hire any such officers if any As result the amount of such salary and

bonus payments if any cannot be determined at this time however the amount of

proceeds used to compensate officers that we may hire in the future will not exceed

$75000 In addition bonus compensation payable out of the proceeds of this offering

may include bonus payments to David Berman our Chief Executive Officer No

understandings arrangements or agreements exist with respect to any bonus

compensation that maybe paid to Mr Berman and as result the amount of such bonus

compensation if any cannot be determined at this time however we will not use more

12



than $10000 from the proceeds of this offering to pay bonus compensation to Mr

Berman Until these proceeds are utilized they will be temporarily invested in short

term highly liquid investments with appropriate safety of principal Any income derived

from these short term investments will be used for working capital

13



DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Corporate History

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp was incorporated in the State of Nevada on

February 23 2005 under the name FRS Group Inc On January 2009 we entered into Share

Exchange Agreement with the stockholders of Stadium Entertainment Corp Stadium

Entertainment pursuant to which the stockholders of Stadium Entertainment exchanged all of

the outstanding shares of Stadium Entertainment for an aggregate 75000000 shares of our

Common Stock As result of the Share Exchange Stadium Entertainment became our wholly

owned subsidiary

Stadium Entertainment is development stage company founded in December 2007 to

produce and distribute prerecorded music products of established recording artists to support

philanthropic grass-roots organizations It commenced doing business in January 2008 Since

the completion of the Share Exchange the operations of Stadium Entertainment have become

our sole line of business Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires all

references to we us our company and similar terms mean Stadium Entertainment Holding

Corp and Stadium Entertainment Corp on consolidated basis after the Share Exchange

Business Overview

We are an independent record company that produces markets and distributes

prerecorded music products of established recording artists to raise funds for worthy charitable

and philanthropic organizations through exclusive licensing agreements and to generate profits

for our company Each of our recorded music projects will be produced with the collaboration

and contributions of socially-conscious artists with desire to give back to their communities In

addition we plan to organize special musical events featuring performances by well-known and

top-selling artists

Three of our founders Camille Barbone Gary Katz and Jerome Mas have extensive

experience in the recorded music industry We will rely on the experience and relationships our

founders and members of our team have in the industry to sign artists to contribute to our

projects and to promote and market our products We plan to contract and license only well-

known established artists for our music projects to reduce the risks associated with start-up

record companies that seek to discover and develop new and emerging talent

Each record project will consist of compact disc series of three or four volumes We

intend to release one volume on an annual basis We expect that each series will culminate with

the release of Best Of record that will include popular tracks from each of the previous

volumes of the series

We intend to release our records for sale in both compact disc and digital formats

including ringtones for mobile telephones We expect to develop new income streams following

the release of record through licensing distribution merchandising and concert promotion

Our first compilation CD project is True to the Game three CD project being

developed to raise funds for the Negro Leagues Baseball Museum which features new music by

14
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Yung Joc Talib Kweli and Raiyn Big Boi and Sam Chris G.L.C and Kanye West Brandon

Hines Ludacris and Jarvis Tay Dizm and Pain among others We have entered into an

agreement with EMI Global Music Services EMI to distribute the True to the Game music

The first volume of True to the Game was released in March 2009 and contains 14

tracks As of September 30 2009 approximately 11000 copies net of returns of True to the

Game Volume have been sold by the Company and approximately 82000 songs from this

compilation have been sold via internet downloads and streaming We plan to re-release True

to the Game Volume in March 2010 to further the momentum created by the initial 2009

release increase opportunities with Major League Baseball and achieve greater penetration of

the retail market than was possible with the original release due to the economic climate

Assuming that we are successful in raising at least $2000000 for this offering we plan to

release True to the Game Volume II in April 2011 The total cost of the initial release of

True to the Game Volume exclusive of $546000 of advertising and promotion costs was

$494000 of which $441000 represents recoupable advances to artists Based on our

discussions with prospective participants in the project which we have discontinued as result

of decision to defer the release of the project until April 2011 we estimate that the total cost of

releasing True to the Game Volume II exclusive of $100000 of estimated advertising and

promotion costs will be approximately $160000 including approximately $140000 of

recoupable advances to artists We expect to include four platinum artists i.e artists who

have sold over million copies of an album four gold artists i.e artists who have sold over

$1000000 of an album and four new artists on True to the Game Volume II See True to

the Game Project below

We expect our second project to be Country compilation We have entered into an

agreement to produce Country music CDs with the Fisher House Foundation non-profit

organization that supports Americas military personnel by meeting humanitarian needs beyond

those normally provided by the United States Department of Defense and Veterans Affairs Our

development of this project will depend on our ability to raise at least $2000000 in this offering

and we do not expect to make any release of the Country compilation before March 2010 We

expect that the cost of releasing the first volume of the Country compilation project will be

comparable to the cost of releasing True to the Game Volume II See Country Compilation

Project below We expect to include four platinum artists four gold artists and four new

artists on our Country compilation project

Our expected costs of producing True to the Game Volume II and our Country

compilation project are expected to be significantly lower than the costs we incurred in

connection with producing True to the Game Volume because

as result of the release of True to the Game Volume we have proven track

record of bringing compilation product to market and believe we are able to

negotiate more favorable terms with prospective participants

the current economic climate and conditions in the music industry have improved

our ability to negotiate more favorable terms with record companies which are now

looking for additional avenues to promote the music of their artists Our

compilation projects present such an avenue to other record companies and
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we plan to reduce the number of well known platinum artists on our compilation

projects to four platinum artists per CD and will offer buy-in opportunities to

record companies which will give the record companies the right to include new

artists on our compilation projects if they share in some of the production costs

which will reduce our music acquisition costs and our net cost of production

We do not believe that the inclusion of lesser known artists will reduce potential sales of

our compilation projects to any significant extent or increase the level of marketing that we must

do to promote the projects inasmuch as we believe that the inclusion of several well-known

artists on each project will present an attractive product to music consumers and enhance the

prospects of obtaining radio airplay of our projects and ii the inclusion of lesser known artists

including in certain cases gold artists will increase the level of promotional activities such

as live events undertaken by the record companies affiliated with these artists to enhance the

public profile of the artists and the recognition of their music Moreover we believe that radio

airplay is strong driver of sales and it is customary in the record industry to promote an album

through the release of not more than four singles from the album for radio air play Our

management believes that utilizing marquee names enhances the prospect of radio play and in

turn greater sales As result we plan to promote our projects primarily through the release of

up to four songs performed by well-known platinum artists

We expect to fund the acquisition of music for the first volume of our Country

compilation and the marketing and promotional expenses for the project from the proceeds of

this offering In addition to the extent that we receive sufficient proceeds from this offering we

may also fund the acquisition of music and marketing and promotional expenses for True to the

Game Volume II or another project from the proceeds of this offering and accelerate our

release of the project The remaining costs of releasing the projects will be funded from cash

generated by operations and expected advances from EMI In addition we are seeking to

develop corporate alliances to generate sponsorships value-added programs and special events to

reduce the net cost of releasing our compilations If the proceeds of this offering cash

generated by operations and the advances from EMI are not sufficient to cover of releasing the

projects we may be required to defer the release of one or both of the projects and/or reduce

marketing and promotional expenses

While the creation and sale of pre-recorded philanthropic music products will initially be

our primary focus and will likely represent at least 60-75% of our revenues for the next 24

months we also plan to engage in

the production of live events and concerts

the development and production of broadcast packages for television and

the Internet

the development of artist careers

the distribution of music for other independent record and entertainment

companies and
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the development of alternative ways to deliver musical properties to

consumers

In providing production services for live events we plan to act as the promoter of the

event by securing the services of the artists and arranging for on-site security insurance

corporate sponsors vendors and advertising We will seek the right to record the event with

view toward utilizing the recording as source of income

As of the date of this Offering Circular our only source of revenues is from the sale of

our True to the Game Volume CD and internet downloads of the songs contained in the

compilation CD We have no binding agreements with respect to any other revenue generating

activities other than our agreement with the Fisher Foundation with respect to our Country

music compilations and we can give no assurance that we will be able to enter into any

agreements related to or generate any revenues from the activities described above

Corporate Goals and Strategy

Our primary objective is to utilize our access to and relationships with top selling music

and entertainment personalities to raise funds for worthy charities and to generate profits for our

company through these projects Because of the types of charities that we plan to choose we

believe that we will be able to contract the services of each participating artist at fraction of

their normal cost fees and royalty structure and obtain rights to new music that has not been

previously released by the artists prior to our use We believe that contracting top selling

recording artists to participate in our projects will enable us to minimize the risks inherent in

start-up entertainment companies By including high selling well known talent in our

compilation projects we expect to capitalize on the success of our pre-recorded music and

develop new income streams through licensing distribution merchandising and concert

promotion while maintaining an ongoing involvement in select charitable organizations In

addition the use of well known artists in our projects will enable us to offer buy-in

opportunities to record companies which will grant the record companies the right to include

works from new artists in our projects if they agree to share in some of our production costs

These cost-sharing arrangements will reduce our net costs of producing our compilations and we

do not believe that the inclusion of lesser known artists on compilation featuring several well

known artists will have any material adverse impact on sales of the project Further we believe

that we will benefit from promotional activities undertaken by record companies affiliated with

these lesser known artists such as live events to enhance the public profile of the artists and

recognition of their music

We believe that the philanthropic component of our business model differentiates us from

our competitors and we do not intend to produce pre-recorded music products other than in

connection with collaboration with charity We may however distribute products for other

labels that do not have charitable connection as discussed below under Associated Label

Division
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Marketing and Promotion

We plan to utilize traditional marketing and promotional techniques and emerging

technologies to fully exploit our musical entertainment products We have entered into an

agreement with EMI Global Music Services for the release and distribution of our music

products which permits us to participate in retail advertising store circulars print ads special

sales and discount programs and cooperative advertising programs All of these approaches are

currently being utilized for the True to the Game Volume release and we are conducting

retail promotion efforts for the project through EMI sales team as liaison to various retail

outlets

Recently we established an in-house sales team which operates on commission only

basis and seeks to sell directly to non-traditional musical retailers including convenience stores

For the True to the Game project this sales team is also marketing directly to professional

baseball teams and organizations that service professional baseball teams such as food

concessionaires and souvenir/apparel vendors

Our Internet website http//www.stadiumentertainment.net is an important distribution

channel through which we make our products available to consumers Sample recorded tracks

and singles from albums can be listened to for no charge and complete albums and other music

products will be available for purchase via link to retailer Currently consumers can listen to

tracks from True to the Game Volume by visiting our website Recent trends in the music

industry have included decline in the traditional purchase of albums in physical compact-disc

form in favor of the purchase of individual recorded tracks via download over the Internet In

recognition of this trend our website will link to retailer websites which provide consumers with

the option of purchasing complete albums in compact-disc form downloading albums single

songs and bundles of songs for charge Currently the website contains links to Amazon.com

and iTunes so that consumers can purchase the True to the Game Volume compilation and

individual tracks At this juncture we do not plan to sell music directly through our website

although we have retained the right to do so Our website also serves as medium through

which we promote our products and provide consumers with information about our artists our

on-going projects and development efforts and our plans for future projects

We also maintain webpage on MySpace.com at myspace.com/truetothegamemusic

where we post materials related to our artists and our current and future projects and which

contains an interactive forum through which we directly communicate with website visitors We

also upload certain media to our MySpace page including sample recorded music tracks and

music videos by our artists to generate consumer interest in our products

Historically the most effective means of promotion was by radio air play Initially we

used traditional radio promotion efforts to promote and gain radio airplay for songs on True to

the Game Volume however based on our experience to date and recent industry trends we

have determined that the traditional approach of engaging independent radio promoters to gain

airplay to boost sales does not provide an adequate return on investment As result we have

shifted our radio promotional strategy to strategy which involves the purchase of advertising

time in key markets which is scheduled strategically with outside events on air interviews with

participating artists and radio station contests and giveaways For example we can generally
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purchase 120 thirty
second radio spots for approximately $2500 which we use to promote the

True to the Game Volume music These radio spots are scheduled around an outside event

such as baseball game and we provide copies of the CD to the radio station which the radio

station uses in connection with promotional events such as contests and giveaways

Our revised radio promotion strategy is coordinated by Gravity Entertainment firm

headed by Wayman Jones veteran radio promotion professional who has headed radio music

campaigns for leading artists in the urban music world We pay Gravity Entertainment $4000

per month for its services under an informal month to month arrangement

Music videos have become an important means of promoting artists and records Once

single reaches level of airplay and critical acclaim that assures long run on charts and

playlists we plan to produce and release promotional video to support and expand on airplay

and exposure and expect that the videos will be played in clubs and venues on conventional

cable and satellite TV and on the Internet however we do not intend to sell the videos As of

September 30 2009 we have released two promotional videos Our first video features Kanye

West and G.L.C performing The Big Screen and the second video features Tay Dizm T-Pain

and Rick Ross performing Beem Me Up

As result of the establishment of our in-house commission based sales force the

consolidation of our outside marketing team and technologies that enable us to perform greater

level of marketing activities through our own personnel we have reduced our marketing costs

and expect to continue substantially all of the marketing programs discussed above regardless of

the amount we raise in this offering We believe that we will be able to continue our marketing

programs at reduced cost because

many of the marketing functions previously outsourced are now handled by our in-

house staff

we have consolidated the number of outside marketing consultants used in

marketing and promotion and are generally using single consultant who is

capable of handling multiple marketing disciplines and

after reviewing the results of our initial radio promotion strategy as well as

changes in the music industry we have revised our approach to radio promotion

and abandoned the traditional method of utilizing team of independent territory-

based promoters to promote our music

The level of marketing activity has been decreased in recent weeks as result of lack of

financial resources If proceeds from the offering and revenues from operations are not

sufficient to support marketing and promotional efforts at prior levels we would expect to

reduce radio promotion activities When financial resources are available we intend to seek

television advertising for our products on television channels that we determine are most likely

to reach our target consumer bases however we do not expect to procure television advertising

until we sell at least 50000 units of the True to the Game Volume CD or use the proceeds

of this offering to fund television advertising As result it is possible that we may never utilize

television advertising Although we will seek exposure through advertising on music
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television channels such as MTV YR-i and the like we do not anticipate producing music

videos for music tracks on our products for television air play other than in connection with our

promotional efforts described above

Manufacturing and Distribution

United States Distribution Agreement with EM We have entered into an agreement with EM
Global Musical Services for the release and distribution of our music products in the United

States which allows us to secure window displays at retail locations end cap promotions retail

advertising print ads product placement and point of purchase material display We are

conducting retail promotion efforts through EM sales team as liaison to various retail outlets

Online services such as iTunes Yahoo Music and Amazon Music are serviced via our

arrangement with EM EMI handles the manufacturing of our music physical products and our

inventory is warehoused at EMI facilities

Pursuant to our agreement with EM we have appointed EMI as our exclusive distributor

of musical products in the United States however we retain the right to license recordings to

third parties for use in soundtracks and compilation albums and to sell products through our

website and in certain cases the websites of the artists We have agreed to pay EM
distribution fee of between 14% and 17% of the net sales of the products distributed depending

on the format of the product sold We believe that these fees are comparable to those charged by

EM to other record companies for similar services as well as those charged in the music industry

in general

EM has agreed to coordinate the manufacturing of our products at the then current price

that it charges third party labels which is currently approximately $1.00 per compact disc We

believe that this price is comparable to the amount charged by other music distributors for this

service

We are responsible for all costs and expenses incurred in connection with advertising

promoting and marketing our music products We designate the applicable wholesale price to be

charged by EMI from the price list categories maintained by EMI subject to EM right to

discount same under certain circumstances

EMI has agreed to pay us certain recoupable advances including $50000 advance

which it provided to us after we delivered to EM the manufacturing and production components

necessary to manufacture and distribute our True to the Game-Yolume product which we

subsequently repaid An additional $50000 recoupable advance was to be paid if certain sales

targets were achieved These sales targets were not met and thus no further advances were

received EM is entitled to charge us specified amounts for returns and slow-moving products

We believe that our distribution arrangement with EM Music Group will enable us to

offer distribution services for other independent record labels and entertainment companies as

described under Associated Label Division below

International License Agreement with EM We have granted to EM an option to acquire an

exclusive license to exploit each of our albums in all territories in the world outside of the United

States EM generally will be required to pay us royalty between 10% and 20% of sales with
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respect to each album that it elects to exploit If EMI elects not to exercise its option in respect

of the first album of series it forfeits its rights as to all albums within the series EMI paid us

an advance of thirty thousand pounds stirling 30000 in July 2009 in connection with the

international release of True to the Game Volume and has agreed to pay an advance of

25000 with respect to the international release of each additional initial album of series

Advances with respect to each subsequent album of series will be based on percentage of our

total royalties attributable to our most recently released album during the 12 months following its

initial release subject to minimum advance of 10000 and maximum advance of 50000

The license agreement with EMI expires on the later of May 16 2012 or EMI recoupment of

all advances

True to the Game Project

We have entered into an exclusive agreement with the Negro Baseball Leagues Museum

to produce and market series of musical projects with the Negro Baseball Leagues as the

theme The Negro Baseball Leagues Museum is not-for-profit organization located in Kansas

City Missouri that was founded to preserve the culture and history of the Negro Baseball

Leagues The Museums charities provide certain benefits and services to minority baseball

players Our projects will take the form of compact discs and digital formats and under our

agreement with the Negro Leagues Baseball Museum we are required to pay royalties to the

Museum on net sales of the music products after production costs are recouped The royalty

percentages differ based upon the type of music sold and generally range from 2% to up to 10%

with respect to sales in the United States if certain sales targets are achieved and from 1% to 6%

with respect to sales outside of the United States Royalties are subject to downward adjustment

with respect to products sold through direct mail order operations and products sold to

educational institutions or libraries or for promotional or sales incentive purposes Royalties are

also subject to reduction with respect to products sold on discount basis

The first volume of our True to the Game project was released in March 2009 and

include the following playlist

Artist

Knock it Out Da Park

Flyaway

BeemMeUp
Still Hurts

The Big Screen

These Past Days

Pretty Girl

Make Your Way to the Dance Floor

Sweetest Taboo

If Told

Tha Bigg League

Ghetto Love

Dont Know How Act

Dont Waima
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Yung Joc

Raiyn and Talib Kweli

Tay Dizm T-Pain and Rick Ross

Macy Gray and Marsha Ambrosius

G.L.C Gangsta Crisisand Kanye West

Sam Chris and Big Boi of OutKast

Jarvis and Ludacris

Ziggy Nina and Chingy

Mikkey Haisted and Kiass

Porta Prince and Ray

The Hustle Boyz and Snoop Dogg

Mario

DJ Pharris Shawna Paul Wall and Lii Scrappy

Brandon Hines
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True to the Game Volume is available for purchase via the Internet through

Amazon.com and iTunes In addition the compact disc can be purchased at various retail

outlets including Best Buy Target and Walmart among others As of September 30 2009

approximately 11000 copies net of returns of the True to the Game Volume have been

sold by the Company and 82000 songs from the compilation had been sold via Internet

downloads and streaming We plan to re-release True to the Game Volume in March 2010

Prior to the re-release we may engage in direct solicitation of Major League Baseball teams to

generate revenues

Our agreements with the artists and/or their record labels generally require us to pay

royalties on sales of the musical product Generally an advance against future royalties is due

upon the execution of the agreement and an additional advance is due if certain sale targets are

met The aggregate amount of royalties payable to artists participating in the True to the Game-

Volume project and/or their labels will be approximately 8% after direct costs of production

are recouped Generally royalties paid by independent music companies to artists are

approximately 14% but are subject to negotiation on case by case basis Our ownership

interest in the musical compositions that will be featured in the True to the Game Volume

project ranges from no ownership to 50% ownership We own 50% interest in the master

recording for each of Knock it Out Da Park Flyaway Sweetest Taboo Still Hurts and

The Big Screen provided however that in the case of Knock it Out Da Park Sweetest

Taboo and The Big Screen we must forfeit our ownership interest in the master if the artists

record label so requires We do not have ownership rights in any of the other tracks on True to

the Game Volume We expect that the record labels will require us to forfeit our rights in

master recordings only if the record company is presented with an opportunity to exploit

recording such as in film or television commercial that is predicated on the record label

having complete control over the master It is impossible to predict if any of the record

companies will exercise their right to require us to forfeit our ownership rights in any master

recordings however we do not believe that any such forfeiture which could be permanent

would have any material adverse effect on our business inasmuch as it would not impact our

ability to include the recording on our project or affect our ability to distribute and sell the track

or the CD on which it is contained Moreover each agreement provides that the exploitation of

the master recording for purposes other than as specifically contemplated by the agreement

requires our consent and we would expect to provide such consent only if we can reach an

agreement that provides an economic benefit to us The primary benefit of having ownership

rights in the master recording is that it gives us the potential right to license the recording for use

in other projects such as film or television productions however the consent of the artist and/or

the artists record company would be required for us to grant any such license and we would not

expect to obtain such consent without reaching an agreement that provides an economic benefit

to the artist and/or record company We do not have any plans to seek these opportunities at the

current time

To generate consumer interest in the project we have launched an extensive multi-media

campaign to capitalize on the name recognition of the artists who are contributing to the project

and on the profile of the Negro Baseball Leagues Museum as worthy philanthropic

organization Our in-house marketing team is conducting marketing and promotional efforts

aimed at non-traditional retailers and is marketing directly to Major League Baseball teams their
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minor league affiliates and organizations that service baseball teams We have also engaged

press and publicity firm to make arrangements for
print

advertisements for the project

We are pursuing non-traditional marketing techniques primarily via the Internet for the

True to the Game project We cater to online music services websites such as iTunes and

Rhapsody music discovery websites such as Goombah Qioud SoundFlavor and

MusiclPExpert music experience augmentation websites such as Snapp Radio and MusicMobs

and music metadata websites such as MusicBrainz Gracenote and All Music Guide We also

service music discovery drivers new form of file-sharing and which include iMix division of

iTunes Pandora and LastFM to increase online sales of individual tracks on downloadable

playlists

We began artist selection for True to the Game Volume II in 2009 but have

suspended negotiations as result of our decision to defer the release of the project and are in

negotiations with potential participants In addition we are negotiating to obtain the right to

include track featuring Tupac in the project however no formal agreement has been reached

with respect to the Tupac track and no assurance can be given that we be able to reach formal

agreement which will allow us to utilize the track

Assuming that we raise at least $2000000 in this offering we plan to release True to

the Game Volume II by April 2011

Country Compilation Project

We have entered into an exclusive agreement the Fisher Foundation to produce and

market series of country music compilations The Fisher Foundation is non-profit

organization established in 1990 that supports Americas military personnel by meeting

humanitarian needs beyond those normally provided by the United States Department of Defense

and Veterans Affairs Because members of the military and their families are stationed

worldwide and must often travel great distances for specialized medical care the Fisher House

Foundation donates comfort homes built on the grounds of major military and VA medical

centers which enable family members to be close to loved one during hospitalization for an

unexpected illness disease or injury

According to the Fisher Foundation there is at least one Fisher House at every major

U.S military medical center and the Fisher House program serves approximately 10000

families annually In addition the Fisher Foundation provides scholarships for military children

and administers the Hero Miles program for the Department of Defense which through the

donation of frequent flyer miles provides airline tickets to hospitalized service members and

their families

Under our agreement with the Fisher Foundation we have obtained license to produce

and market two multi-track country music CDs which will benefit the Fisher Foundation We

have also been granted an option to produce third CD The agreement requires us to pay

royalties to the Fisher Foundation on net sales after production costs are recouped The royalty

percentages differ based upon the type of music sold and generally range from 2% to up to 10%

with respect to sales in the United States if certain sales targets are achieved and from 1% to 6%

23



with respect to sales outside of the United States Royalties are subject to downward adjustment

with respect to products sold through direct mail order operations and products sold to

educational institutions or libraries or for promotional or sales incentive purposes Royalties are

also subject to reduction with respect to products sold on discount basis

Associated Label Division

In August 2009 we established our Associated Label Division to increase our

emphasis on providing distribution and other services to independent record and entertainment

companies We are in active discussions and in various stages of negotiations with over 15

companies and expect to structure these arrangements to compensate us through an initial fixed

dollar administrative fee and distribution fee based on percentage of sales We expect to

require each associated label to deposit up to $50000 in escrow which will be used to pay for

manufacturing retail programming or advertising services which will be outsourced to EMI or

other third parties Other outsourced services offered to associated labels will include among

others product coordination marketing services and radio promotion We have not reached any

definitive agreement to provide distribution or any other services with independent record

companies and thus we can give no assurance that we will enter into any such definitive

agreement or generate any revenues through our Associated Label Division

Government Regulation

We are not subject to any specific government regulations that affect the dissemination

andlor distribution of our products However the Recording Industry Association of America

RIAA has undertaken efforts to curb illicit peer-to-peer dissemination of recorded music in

digital format which efforts may result in requirements that certain restrictions and safeguards

be encoded within digital music tracks to prevent such unlawful dissemination or copying

Copyrights and Intellectual Property

Our prerecorded music business like that of other companies involved in prerecorded

music will primarily rest on ownership or control and exploitation of musical works and sound

recordings Our music products are and will be protected under applicable domestic and

international copyright laws

Although circumstances vary from case to case rights and royalties relating to

particular recording typically operate as follows When recording is made copyright in that

recording generally vests either in the recording artists and/or their production companies and is

licensed to the recording company or in the record company itself depending on the terms of

the agreement between them Similarly when musical composition is written copyright in the

composition vests either in the writer and is licensed to third-party music publishing company

or in third-party music publishing company or in publishing company owned and controlled

by the artist public performance of record will result in money being paid to the writer and

publisher The rights to reproduce songs on sound carriers i.e compact discs are obtained by

record companies or publishers from the writer or the publishing company entitled to license

such compositions The manufacture and sale of sound carrier results in mechanical royalties

being payable by the record company to the publisher of the composition who then remits
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portion of such royalties to the writer or writers of the composition at previously agreed or

statutory rate for the use of the composition and by the record company to the recording artists

for the manufacture and distribution of the recording We operate in an industry in which

revenues are adversely affected by the unauthorized reproduction of recordings for commercial

sale commonly referred to as piracy and by unauthorized and illegal downloading/copying

from the Internet for personal use We rely on compilation copyright protection under applicable

copyright law for our compilation projects and designate these projects as copyrighted works

We have not filed any copyrights with the United States Patent and Trademark Office

Potential publishing revenues may be derived from our ownership interest in musical

compositions written in whole or in part by our recording artists who enter into agreements with

us Our ownership in artist works will vary on case by case basis and we anticipate that in

some cases we will obtain 100% ownership in other cases we will have partial ownership and in

some cases we will have no ownership interest We obtain rights to musical compositions in

various ways including licensing existing masters that have not been previously released to the

public by in-house recording and production of musical compositions for specific projects or by

contracting third party producers musicians and engineers to produce musical tracks specifically

for our project

Performance rights in compositions that we own are enforced under agreements we and

the writer have with performing rights organizations such as the American Society of

Composers Authors and Publishers ASCAP Broadcast Music Inc BMI and SESAC

Inc which license the public performance of composition to commercial users of music such

as radio and television broadcasters restaurants retailers etc and disburse collected fees based

upon the frequency and type of public performances they identify Generally revenues from

publishing are generated in the form of mechanical royalties paid by the record company to

the publisher for the mechanical duplication of particular copyrighted composition as distinct

from the copying of the artists performance of that composition performance royalties

collected and paid by performing rights entities such as ASCAP and BMI for the actual public

performance of the composition as represented by radio airplay Musak or as theme or jingle

broadcast in synchronization with visual image via television sub-publishing revenues

derived from copyright earnings outside of the United States and Canada from collection agents

located outside of the United States and Canada and licensing fees derived from printed

sheet music uses in synchronization with images as in video or film scores computer games and

other software applications and any other use involving the composition

We will rely on exclusive licensing agreements with the charities with which we team to

provide protection for the products and products that are produced

Markets and Competition

The music industry is multi-billion dollar industry which according to the Recording

Industry Association of America grossed approximately $10.3 billion in 2008 We believe that

the growth of this sector has been inhibited by the inability of many companies to streamline and

modernize their approach to the end user and that mobile music services are at the center of

industry growth Therefore we are making it priority
in our projects to position ourselves to

acquire these rights Moreover we will continue to differentiate ourselves from our competition
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and attempt to claim respectable share of the marketplace through use of the Internet viral

marketing techniques non-traditional retail outlets cross industry marketing cable television

short film marketing and other innovative forms of access

We seek to utilize the talents of well-established artists rather than establishing new and

unknown artists although we will in future projects offer record companies the opportunity to

have recording by new or emerging artist included in our compilation projects by paying

buy-in fee to us Because at least one-half of the tracks on our compilation projects will be

recordings of well known artists we will not be in direct competition with other start-up record

labels that seek to discover and contract with new and emerging talent Rather our primary

competitors are more established record companies such as Sony Universal and Warner

However if our business model proves to be successful we expect other companies to emulate

our model Therefore to the extent possible we attempt to secure contracts with our charitable

and philanthropic partners on an exclusive basis to ensure control of market share and the

participation of high profile artists

Research and Development

To the extent that financial resources are available we plan to conduct research and

development activities with respect to alternative and state of the art methods of delivering music

and entertainment products to consumers For example we have begun preliminary research

with respect to potential marketing and sales opportunities and legal security issues related to

USB bracelet designed by third party to hold full length musical albums as well as videos

photos and other medium that could be offered as an alternative to compact discs No

assurance can be given that any research or development opportunities that we undertake will

result in any commercial benefit to us

Employees

As of November 30 2009 we had two full-time employees and no part-time

employees We also utilize the services of independent third party consultants as our needs

require

Revenue Streams

The three primary revenue streams we intend to target are sales of music products via

third party distributors both at retail stores and over the Internet direct sales of music in

digital format via download from retailers linked to our website and fees for providing

distribution and other services to independent record companies

It is customary in the industry for third party distributor to receive portion of the

proceeds from sales effected by the distributor However we believe it is important to avail

ourselves of this method of sale and distribution as it enables us to reach broader consumer

base and to generate greater public exposure for our products and our artists
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DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Our principal offices are located at 888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor New York NY

10010 which consist of approximately 800 square feet of commercial office facility We

occupy these offices under an arrangement with our independent accounting firm Spielman

Koenisberg Parker LLP which does not currently charge us for our occupancy This

accommodation is made as result of personal relationship between the principals of Spielman

Koenisberg Parker LLP and members of our management team and is of an indefinite term

All of our printing manufacturing distribution and warehousing is performed by independent

contractors

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AND PLAN OF OPERATION

Forward-Looking Information

You should read the following plan of operation together with our financial statements

and related notes appearing elsewhere in this offering circular This plan of operation contains

forward-looking statements that involve risks uncertainties and assumptions The actual results

may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as result of

certain factors including but not limited to those presented under Risk Factors or elsewhere

in this Offering Statement

Overview

We were incorporated on February 23 2005 to design and create prototypes for wide

range of outdoor gear We did not generate any revenues from these activities

On January 2009 we acquired all of the outstanding shares of Stadium Entertainment

Corp pursuant to the Share Exchange in which we issued an aggregate 75000000 shares of

Common Stock in exchange for all of the outstanding shares of common stock of Stadium

Entertainment Corp Stadium Entertainment Corp is development stage company and has not

achieved any revenues to date Stadium Entertainment was founded in December 2007 to

provide market and distribute prerecorded music products of established recording artists to

raise funds for worthy charitable philanthropic organizations and generate profits from its

business

Results of Operations for the Nine Months Ended September 30 2009

Revenues net of provision for returns for the nine months ended September 30 2009

were $115206 which represents our initial sales of True to the Game music products

including $7630 from digital downloads of the compilation and individual tracks and the

remainder from the sale of 10997 copies net of returns of the physical CD product Sales

declined during the six months ended September 30 2009 compared to the three months ended

March 31 2009 as result of curtailment of promotional efforts We will increase promotional

efforts for True to the Game Volume in anticipation of our proposed re-release of the

compilation in March 2010 if we are successful in raising funds in this offering Cost of sales for

the nine months ended September 30 2009 were $70180 which included non-recoupable

production costs of $35024 $9995 of royalty payments and $16290 of licensing fees Selling
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general and administrative expense for the nine months ended September 30 2009 was

$817118 which consisted of salaries $86667 advertising and promotion costs $263792

professional fees $326668 and distribution costs $30387

As result of the foregoing we incurred loss from operations of $763685 and net

loss of $898786 for the period

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31 2008

Stadium Entertainment achieved no revenues during the year ended December 31 2008

Total operating expenses during 2008 were $969603 including non-recoupable production

expenses of $38453 and general and administrative expenses of $969603 General and

administrative expenses consisted primarily of salaries $385000 advertising and promotion

costs $237140 professional fees $124172 travel expenses $69846 public relations costs

$55021 payroll taxes $34303 and insurance $23363 Stadium Entertainment incurred

net loss of $1407981 for the year ended December 31 2008

Plan of Operation

At December 2009 we had approximately $5000 of cash Stadium Entertainment has

funded its operations to date through equity contributions from its founders advances from EMI

and borrowings including loan from related party in the aggregate principal amount of

approximately $1364800 which became due in February 2009 An additional loan of $125000

was made by the lender during the quarter ended September 30 2009 The loans bears interest at

rate of ten percent 10% per annum and are secured by all of our right title and interest in our

True to the Game compilation including our rights in the master recordings our agreement

with the Negro Baseball League Museum and all contracts products and proceeds of the

foregoing The related party lender has not issued notice of default nor attempted to collect

under the loan agreement and no written or verbal agreement has been reached with respect to

an extension of the due date of the loan except that the lender has extended the date by which

interest and the $125000 advance made in the quarter ended September 30 2009 must be paid

until the earlier of our receipt of $2500000 or more of cash proceeds from this offering or June

30 2010 We plan to repay $1364800 of the principal amount of the loans if we raise at least

$2000000 but less than $2500000 from this offering and to repay the loans in full if

$2500000 or more is raised in this offering To the extent that we do not raise sufficient funds

in this offering to repay the loans in full we plan to make periodic payments out of cash

generated from operations to satisfy the remaining obligations

In recent weeks we have been managing our cash requirements by negotiating deferrals

with creditors suspending promotional activities and deferring payments to consultants and

employees In addition we terminated the employment of one employee in October 2009 as

result of our cash constraints Pending the initial closing of this offering management is

endeavoring to keep cash expenditures to minimum At the same time management is

endeavoring to consummate distribution agreements requiring the payment of upfront

administrative fees to us to generate immediate revenues In addition we are in discussions with

potential corporate sponsors of our projects which could result in advances to us or purchases of

our first project We are also considering direct solicitation campaign to Major League
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Baseball to generate short-term sales of True to the Game Volume To the extent that we

require additional funding prior to the initial closing of this offering we would seek additional

advances from EMI or seek to borrow additional amounts from existing or other lenders No

assurance can be given that our efforts to obtain revenues in the near term or to obtain funds

from third parties will be successful

As of September 30 2009 we had $400000 principal amount of other loans outstanding

including $180000 borrowed under promissory notes issued in February 2009 which bear

interest at rate of 10% per annum iibecame due on September 30 2009 and iii are

convertible into common stock at price equal to the greater of 75% of the closing per share

market price of our common stock on the first day of reported trading or $.25 per share The

remaining $220000 of borrowings are represented by promissory notes which bear interest at

rate of 10% per annum All of these amounts are past due As result the total principal

amount of borrowings that are past due as of the date of this Offering Circular is $1714800

We expect to pay off the $400000 of indebtedness described above with cash generated from

operations If cash generated from operations is not sufficient to repay the debt we will seek an

extension of the term of the obligations and in the case of the convertible notes potentially

request conversion of the notes Holders of the $220000 aggregate principal amount of notes

which are past due are being offered the opportunity to pay the subscription price for shares

offered hereby through the exchange of the notes Any such exchanges will be effected at rate

of $.25 per share If the holders of our outstanding notes do not agree to an extension or

exchange of the notes and demand payment we may be required to defer the release of our new

projects reduce marketing and promotional expenses and/or place greater emphasis on

distributing music on behalf of other record companies We do not anticipate that any such

deferral would be for period of more than six months

We plan to finance our capital needs primarily from the sale of debt and/or equity

securities including the proceeds of this offering We recorded our first revenues in March 2009

and expect that the proceeds of this offering together with advances expected to be made to us

by EMI under our distribution agreement revenues generated from our business activities

including sales of our music products and fees and revenues generated through distribution

activities will be sufficient to support our operations for 12 months if the minimumoffering

amount is raised and 24 months if the maximum offering amount is raised however we have

generated only modest revenues to date and potential revenue streams are speculative As

result we can give no assurance that cash generated from operations will be sufficient to fund

future projects We may need additional funds sooner than planned to meet capital requirements

for product development and marketing No assurance can be given that we will be able to raise

the capital required to develop and support our business

Since March 31 2009 we have significantly reduced monthly operating expenses

including reductions in payroll expenses from $36000 to $14000 per month iiconsulting

fees from approximately $26000 to $14000 per month through consolidation of duties and the

in-house performance of certain marketing and promotion functions that were previously

outsourced iii radio promotion expenses by approximately $20000- $30000 per month via

change in approach from traditional radio promotion efforts to an approach which focuses on

special promotions using radio advertising tie-ins contests and give-aways iv professional fees

through change in professionals and alternative billing arrangements We believe that we will
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incur significantly lower costs producing and releasing future compilation projects than we did in

producing and releasing True to the Game Volume as result of the steps taken to reduce

marketing and promotion expenses described above and because

we plan to reduce the number of well known platinum artists in our compilation

projects to four platinum artists per CD

offering record companies the opportunity to include their lesser known artists in

our compilation projects will reduce net production costs by an estimated $70000

per 14 song CD and

based on discussions with third parties we believe that we will be able to acquire

rights to music at per track cost that will be approximately $5000 $10000 less

than the per track cost incurred in connection with True to the Game Volume

In general record albums have traditionally been promoted through the release for radio

airplay of no more than four singles from an album As result we do not believe that the

measures we have undertaken to reduce our production costs including the inclusion of lesser

known artists will have any material adverse impact on the commercial success of our

compilation projects because we plan to promote our projects primarily through the release of

up to four songs performed by well known platinum artists iiwe expect that our promotional

efforts will be supplemented by promotional activities undertaken by the record companies of the

lesser known artists and iii we believe that our revised strategy for radio promotion will

produce greater results at lesser cost than our original radio promotion strategy however as in

the case of the release of any music product we can give no assurance that there will be

widespread consumer acceptance of any of the compilations that we release
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Our plan of operation for the next 24 months and the estimated cost of achieving certain

significant milestones assuming that we raise at least $2000000 in this offering and the

expected source of funds to achieve each milestone is as follows

Estimated Cost and

Expected Source

Milestone Estimated Completion Date of Funds

Secure rights to all music for Country December 2009 $140000 from

compilation project proceeds of

offering

Release five CD catalogues each December 2009 $5000 from

consisting of approximately 5-6 CDs for distribution fees

distribution on behalf of independent payable by

record companies independent record

companies

Release Country compilation project March 2010 $100000

Volume marketing and

promotion from

proceeds of

offering

Re-release True to the Game Volume March 2010 $40000 from

proceeds of

offering

Secure rights to all music for release of November 2010 $140000 from

True to the Game Volume II proceeds of

offering and/or

revenues from

operations

Secure rights to music for Country December 2010 $140000 from

compilation Volume II proceeds of

offering and/or

revenues from

operations

Release True to the Game Volume II March 2011 $100000

marketing and

promotion from
revenues from

operations and

advances from

EMI
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Release Country compilation Volume II June 2011 $100000

marketing and

promotion from
revenues from

operations and

advances from

EMI

The foregoing represents managements best estimate as to the date that the milestones

identified above will be achieved and the cost and expected source of funds associated with

completing same Actual results may vary We expect to fund the acquisition of music for the

first volume of our Country compilation project and the marketing and promotional expenses for

this project from the proceeds of this offering In addition to the extent that we receive

sufficient proceeds from this offering we may also fund the acquisition of music and marketing

and promotional expenses for True to the Game Volume II or another project from the

proceeds of this offering and accelerate our release of the project If we dont receive sufficient

funds from this offering to fund the acquisition of music and marketing and promotional

expenses for True to the Game Volume we plan to fund such costs through revenues

generated from operations and an advance from EMI however our ability to generate the

required level of revenues is speculative and we may be required to defer the acquisition of

music for True to the Game Volume II until we achieve the necessary revenues or raise

additional capital of which there can be no assurance

As indicated in the above table we plan to fund the costs associated with achieving the

other milestones as follows

we plan to fund the cost of releasing CD catalogues for distribution on behalf of

independent record companies from distribution fees payable by the record

companies and do not expect that we would engage in these activities unless we

receive the required distribution fees

we expect to fund the acquisition of music for the release of Volume II of our

Country compilation from revenues from operations and an advance from EMI

however our ability to generate the required level of revenues is speculative and

we may be required to delay the release of Volume II of the Country compilation

until we achieve the necessary revenues or raise additional capital of which there

can be no assurance

If we do not generate sufficient cash from operations to repay the indebtedness which

becomes due in September through December of 2009 and are unable to obtain an extension or

conversion of outstanding notes we may be forced to defer certain activities such as acquiring

rights to music for our projects or promoting new projects until cash flow from operations or

other financing is available to fund these activities
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DIRECTORS EXECUTIVEOFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

The following list names each person who serves as director executive officer or

significant employee of the Company and the period during which each has served in the

respective position with the Company as well as each person who has been nominated or chosen

to become director or executive officer

Name Position

David Berman 66 Chief Executive Officer Director

Gary Katz 67 Director

Camille Barbone 57 President Chief Financial Officer and Director

David Berman was appointed Chief Executive Officer of Stadium Entertainment in

January 2009 Since October 2001 to the present Mr Berman has provided consulting services

to participants in the music industry and served as an expert witness on music industry matters

From February 1998 until April 2001 he served as President of Buena Vista Music Group the

pre-recorded music and music publishing arm of The Walt Disney Company From April 1991

until April 2001 Mr Berman served as Senior Executive and General Counsel of Geffen

Records Prior thereto he served as President of Capitol Industries division of EMI Music

Group which he joined in 1989 From 1976 until 1987 he served in various capacities for

Warner Brother Records and was engaged in the private practice of law from 1969 until 1976

and from 1989 until 1991 He graduated from Harvard Law School in 1969

Gary Katz founder of Stadium Entertainment is an acclaimed producer with more

than 30 years experience in the music industry who served as our President until his resignation

in July 2009 From November 2006 until joining Stadium Entertainment Mr Katz was an

independent consultant and record producer for select roster of clients in the music industry

From December 2004 he served as President of Winedark Records From January 2001 until

December 2004 Mr Katz served as Vice President of Artist Repertoire for Aezra Records

Mr Katz was instrumental for the signing of artists such as Jimmy Buffet Chaka Khan Rufus
Jim Croce Prince and Dire Straits and has provided consulting services to several major record

companies

Camille Barbone founder of Stadium Entertainment has more than 30 years

experience in the entertainment industry She served as Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial

Officer and Director from the inception of Stadium Entertainment and was appointed as our

President in July 2009 Prior to founding Stadium Entertainment in December 2007 Ms

Barbone operated Barbone Consult Group which provided promotional development

production sales and marketing services to various clients including record companies music

distribution companies artists and artist development teams from December 2005 through

December 2007 From December 2004 to November 2006 she served as Vice President General

Manager of Winedark Records Fontana Universal Distribution where her responsibilities

included supervision of all operational administrative budgetary and departmental activities

Ms Barbone served in similar capacity with Aezra-EMI Records from April 2003 until

December 2004 She served as Vice President-Artist Relations for Aezra-EMI Records from
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March 2001 until April 2003 Earlier in her career she held key positions at major record labels

such as Production Director for Columbia/Epic Director of New Release Production for

Phonogram/Mercury and Director of Artist and Repertoire for Buddah Entertainment In 1977

she formed August Artists Ltd where she provided an innovative alternative for the new music

scene in New York City During this period Ms Barbone was responsible for discovering

developing and managing Madonna Ms Barbone has also worked on artist development and

promotion at major record labels such as Arista MCA Universal Warner Brothers Disney

Music Publishing SESAC Warner Chappell Music Atlantic and TVT Records She has owned

and operated two key recording studios Gotham Sound Studios in New York City and Long

View Farm Studios residential recording facility located on 120-acre farm in rural

Massachusetts Her recording studio clients have included The Indigo GirlsGeezer Butler The

Rolling Stones Aerosmith Michael Bolton and Living Colour Ms Barbone has created and

produced major musical concerts and series such as the American Express Songmasters Inside-

Out series featuring gold- and platinum-selling artists the Gospel segment of Woodstock 94
two concerts at the 2002 Olympics in Salt Lake City for the Coca Cola Company and three

performances at the 2003 Gravity Games Ms Barbone served on the staff and taught at the City

University of New York for five years and was responsible for creating and launching its

Entertainment Marketing Department and Internship program She has served as music

supervisor for key motion pictures and has placed songs and music in films by Steven Spielberg

Wes Craven Disney Miramax Films and Cinepix

We have no formal employment agreements with any of our executive officers however

we expect that Ms Barbone will devote 100% of her professional time and attention to our

business and affairs and Mr Berman will devote approximately 10% of his professional time to

our business and affairs

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Compensation

The following table sets forth the aggregate annual remuneration of each of the three

highest paid persons who served as officers or directors during the year ended December 31

2008 fiscal year and of all of the officers and directors as group

Name Capacities in Which Remuneration Aggregate

was Received Remuneration

Gary Katz President $100000

Camille Barbone Chief Operating Officer $100000

All Officers and Directors as $200000

Group Persons

Mr Katz resigned his position as President in July 2009

David Berman is currently serving as our Chief Executive Officer and devotes

approximately 10% of his professional time and attention to our business and affairs Mr
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Berman has agreed to serve in this capacity without remuneration other than the reimbursement

of out-of-pocket expenses We expect to make an equity award to Mr Berman in 2009

however our Board of Directors has not yet approved any such award and the precise nature and

amount of the award has not yet been determined

Equity Incentive Plan

In August 2009 our Board of Directors adopted an Equity Incentive Plan The following

is summary of the material terms of the Equity Incentive Plan total of 10000000 shares of

our Common Stock has been reserved for issuance under the Equity Incentive Plan

The purpose of the plan is to allow our employees directors and consultants to participate

in our growth and to generate an increased incentive for these persons to contribute to our future

success and prosperity and to focus on our growth Employees directors and consultants and

other persons or entities in position to make significant contribution to our success are all

eligible to receive awards under the plan The plan will be administered by our Board of

Directors or if and when established the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors

The Board or Compensation Committee is authorized to grant

Incentive stock options within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue

Code

Nonqualified stock options

Stock appreciation rights

Restricted stock grants

Deferred stock awards

Other stock based awards to employees and other persons and entities who in the

opinion of the Board of Directors or Compensation Committee are in position

to make significant contribution to our success

The Board of Directors or Compensation Committee has the power to determine the

terms of any awards granted under the Equity Incentive Plan including the exercise price the

number of shares subject to the award and conditions of exercise Awards granted under the

Equity Incentive Plan are generally not transferable The exercise price of all incentive stock

options granted under the Equity Incentive Plan must be at least equal to the fair market value of

the shares of common stock on the date of the grant

The Equity Incentive Plan will terminate on July 31 2019 unless earlier terminated by

the Board of Directors

The maximum number of shares which may be issued to our Chief Executive Officer

pursuant to awards granted under the plan may not exceed 35% of the number of shares reserved

for issuance under the plan and the maximum number of shares which may be issued pursuant to
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awards to any other participate in the plan may not exceed 20% of the number of shares reserved

for issuance under the plan

The Equity Incentive Plan may be amended or terminated by our Board of Directors

except that approval of our shareholders is required to the extent required by applicable law rule

or regulation and the exercise price of options and the base price of stock appreciation rights

generally may not be decreased without stockholder approval The administrator of the plan has

the right to amend the plan and any award under the plan without stockholder approval unless

otherwise required by law to comply with applicable laws rules or regulations including

Sections 409A and 422 of the Internal Revenue Code

In August 2009 we issued options to acquire 1000000 shares of Common Stock to each

of Wayman Jones who provides consulting services in the areas of radio promotion and radio

marketing ii John Betancourt who provides consulting services in the areas of sales marketing

and radio promotion and iii Michael Omansky who provides consulting services in the areas of

internet and corporate marketing The options which have term of ten years have an exercise

price of $.25 per share Options with respect to 340000 shares vested immediately upon grant

and options with respect to 330000 shares vest on the six month and one year anniversary date

of the date of grant The options may be exercised by paying the exercise price in cash or by

utilizing cashless exercise technique whereby the optionee agrees to the surrender of the

optionee right to receive shares having an aggregate value based on the then current market

value as determined in accordance with the terms of the plan equal to the aggregate exercise

price of the option The options have term of ten 10 years and are non-transferable The

Company expects to record approximately $113000 of compensation expense during the quarter

ending September 30 2009 as result of the option grants

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITYHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information as of December 2009 with respect to the

beneficial ownership as defined in Rule 3d-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended the Exchange Act of the Companys Common Stock which is the only class of the

Companys capital stock with shares issued and outstanding by each of the three highest paid

persons who are officers and directors of the Company iieach person or group of persons

known by the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than ten percent 10% of the

Companys outstanding Common Stock and iii all directors and executive officers of the

Company as group

Name and Address of Owner Number of Shares Percent of Class

Stadium Entertainment Group LLC 37500000 37.5%

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New York NY 110010

David Berman

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New York NY 110010
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Gary Katz 12500000 12.5%

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New York NY 10010

Camille Barbone 12500000 12.5%

888 Seventh Avenue 35th Floor

New York NY 10010

Jerome Mas 12500000 12.5%

5865 East Mezzanine Way
Long Beach CA 90808

Sandstone Investment Partners LLC 50833333 50.8%

425 Broad Hollow Road Suite 115

Melville NY 11747

Emerald Asset Advisors LLC 50833333 50.8%

425 Broad Hollow Road Suite 115

Melville NY 11747

Michael Xirinachs 50833333 50.8%

425 Broad Hollow Road Suite 115

Melville NY 11747

All Officers and Directors as Group Persons 37500000 37.5%

Represents 12500000 of the shares owned by Stadium Entertainment Group LLC
beneficial owner of 37.5% of our outstanding Common Stock Each of these

shareholders has one-third 1/3 ownership interest in Stadium Entertainment Group

LLC and one-third 1/3 pecuniary interest in the shares owned by it

Includes shares owned by each of Sandstone Investment Partners LLC 37500000

shares Emerald Asset Advisors LLC 5000000 shares and Michael Xirinachs

8333333 shares Michael Xirinachs is the managing member of each of Sandstone

Investment Partners LLC and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC In September 2009 the

Securities and Exchange Commission filed civil complaint against Michael Xirinachs

Emerald Asset Advisors LLC and four other parties alleging that between February 2006

and June 2007 they engaged in an unregistered distribution of shares of Universal

Express Inc The complaint alleges that Mr Xirinachs entered into private agreements to

obtain shares for Emerald Asset Advisors Inc and North Atlantic Resources Ltd and

arranged for the sale of the shares without filing registration statement Mr Xirinachs

and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC are charged with violating the securities registration

provisions of Sections 5a and 5c of the Securities Act of 1933 which prohibit

interstate offers and sales of securities unless registration statement is filed or in effect

The Commission seeks permanent injunctions against all defendants disgorgement of ill

37



gotten gains civil penalties and penny stock bars Mr Xirinachs has advised the

Company that he and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC intend to vigorously defend the

action

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Effective January 2009 we completed the Share Exchange and acquired all of the

outstanding Common Stock of Stadium Entertainment At the time of the Share Exchange

Michael Xirinachs was our sole officer and director and the beneficial owner of 53.3% of our

outstanding Common Stock Mr Xirinachs owns 100% membership interest in Sandstone

Investment Partners LLC which owned 50% of the outstanding Common Stock of Stadium

Entertainment immediately before the completion of the Share Exchange

During 2008 Sandstone LLC loaned an aggregate of $1364800 to us under loan

agreement which provides for interest on the unpaid balance at rate of ten percent 10% per

annum The loan became due on February 14 2009 Michael Xirinachs is the managing

member of each of Sandstone LLC and Emerald Asset Advisors LLC which is the beneficial

owner of approximately 50.8% of the outstanding Common Stock The loan which became due

in full in February 2009 is secured by all of our right title and interest in our compilation audio

album commemorating the Negro Baseball League Museum and any sequels thereto including

our rights in the master recordings included in the album our agreement with the Negro Baseball

League Museum and all contracts products and proceeds of any of the foregoing Sandstone

LLC has extended the date by which accrued interest must be paid under the loan until the earlier

of our receipt of $2500000 or more of cash proceeds from this offering or June 30 2010

however Sandstone LLC has not extended the maturity date of the principal amount of the loan

and no assurance can be given that Sandstone will not elect to pursue remedies against us

During the quarter ended September 30 2009 we advanced an aggregate of $22000

against salaries to three employees including $10000 to our President Camille Barbone

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

No Underwriting

The offering is not underwritten We have not employed outside brokers or sales agents

for this offering The shares will be marketed only by the directors and officers of the Stadium

Entertainment namely Gary Katz and Camille Barbone who will not receive any commissions

or other compensation for these sales It is anticipated that potential investors have pre-existing

business relationships with these officers and other affiliates of our company as well as potential

investors referred by parties having pre-existing business relationships with the officers and

affiliates will be solicited Because this offerings is not underwritten we may not sell as many

shares as we possibly could have sold if we had used an underwriter

Purchase of Common Stock

We will offer shares of Common Stock having minimum aggregate offering price of

$2000000 and maximum aggregate offering price of $3000000 for sale to the public at

price of $.25 per share beginning on or about 2009 In our sole discretion
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we may accept or reject all or part of any subscription received from subscribers who wish to

purchase shares in the offering

Any person including shareholders who wishes to purchase shares of Common

Stock during the offering to the public must complete and sign the Subscription Agreement

delivered with this Offering Statement and deliver it together with the subscription price

to Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp at the address specified in the Subscription

Agreement Any offers to subscribe for shares of Common Stock during the offering to the

public are not binding until we accept them and we reserve the right to accept or reject all or part

of any subscription offer in our sole discretion To determine which subscriptions to accept in

whole or in part we may take into consideration the order in which the subscriptions are

received among other things Any subscriber whose subscription is rejected shall have his her

or its funds returned without interest All offers to subscribe must be made for shares of

Common Stock having minimumaggregate purchase price of $10000 The purchase price

must be paid in United States currency by check draft or money order drawn to the order of

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp Stock Offering We may in our discretion permit

subscribers to pay for shares through the exchange of up to $220000 aggregate principal amount

of outstanding promissory notes at rate of $.25 per share No such subscriptions will be taken

into account in determining whether we have received the $2000000 aggregate investment

requirement Subscriptions paid through the exchange of notes will be taken into account for

purposes of determining whether the $3000000 maximum amount of the offering has been

achieved

Time Frame of Subscription

Subscriptions from the public including shareholders will be accepted until 530 p.m
New York City time on II 2010 Subscribers purchasing shares of Common

Stock will be issued stock certificates as soon as practicable after acceptance of their

subscriptions If shares having minimum aggregate purchase price of $2000000 have not

been subscribed for on or before the Initial Termination Date of ___________2009 we will

promptly return to subscribers the subscription amounts without interest however we may

elect in our discretion on one time basis to extend the Initial Termination Date until

__________ 2009 by providing notice to subscribers by no later than 500 p.m New York City

time on ___________ 2009 in which case the return of subscription amounts to subscribers will

not be made until promptly after the extended Initial Termination Date Pending the acceptance

or return of subscriptions subscription amounts will be maintained in segregated account but

we will not use an escrow arrangement for these funds during this period

Assignability

No subscribers privileges or rights under Subscription Agreement are assignable

without our written consent which may be withheld in our discretion Subscription rights should

not be confused with shareholders right to transfer shares of the Companys Common Stock

after the shares have been issued

Reservations
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In addition to the minimum share purchase limits we may reject any subscription at any

time for any reason made pursuant to the offering in our sole discretion

Shares having minimum aggregate cash purchase price of $2000000 must be sold in

order to complete the offering

All subscription proceeds will be immediately available to the Company upon our

acceptance of the subscription If for any reason funds are returned to any subscriber the

amount returned will be without interest We reserve the right to terminate the offering for any

reason at any time

SECURITIES BEING OFFERED

General

We are offering shares of our Common Stock $.001 par value per share Our authorized

capital stock consists of 500000000 shares of Common Stock par value $.001 per share of

which 100000000 shares are currently issued and outstanding Following this offering if all

shares offered hereby are sold at the offering price of $.25 per share 112000000 shares of

Common Stock will be issued and outstanding Our Common Stock has the following rights

Dividend Rights

The holders of the Common Stock are entitled to dividends when as and if declared by

our board of directors subject to the restrictions imposed by applicable law

Voting Rights

Under the Nevada Revised Statutes and our Amended and Restated Certificate of

Incorporation each share of Common Stock is entitled to one vote per share Holders of

Common Stock do not have cumulative voting rights

Liquidation Rights

In the event of liquidation dissolution or winding up of the Company holders of

Common Stock are entitled to receive on pro rata basis any assets distributable to

shareholders after the payment of debts and liabilities and after the distribution to holders of any

outstanding shares hereafter issued which have priority rights upon liquidation

Preemptive Rights

Holders of our Common Stock do not have preemptive rights to acquire our securities

Liability to Further Calls or to Assessment by the Company

Holders of Common Stock are not subject to further calls or assessments
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STADIUM ENTERTAINMENT HOLDING CORPORATION

Development Stage Company

Formerly known as FRS Group Inc

BALANCE SHEET

December31 2008

Assets

Cirrrent

Cash

Total current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current

Account payable 3207

Total current liabilities 3207

Stockholders equity deficit

Common stock $.00I par value 500000000 25000

common shares authorized 25000000

shares issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital 50000

Deficit accumulated during the development stage 8207

66793

Less subscription receivable 70000

Total stockholders equity deficit 3207

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

Fi



Revenue

Expenses

Accounting and professional fees

Total expenses

Loss from operations

Net loss

Loss per common share

STADIUM ENTERTAINMENT HOLDING CORPORATION
Development Stage Company

Formerly known as FRS Group Inc

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31 2008 and 2007
And the Period Februaiy 24 2005 Date of Inception to December 31 2008

2008
2007

Feb 24 2005 Inception

Dec 31 2008

_s _____
200

200

200

200

200

200

200

8207

8207

82
j_ 82
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STADIUM ENTERT HOLDING CORPORATION
Development Stage Company

Formerly known as FRS Group Inc

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31 2008 and 2007
And the Pçpod February 24 2005 Date of Inception to December 31 2008

Cash flows from
operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to

net cash used in operating activities

Increase in

Accounts payable

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of common stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash

Cash January or from inception

Cash December31

2008

200

Feb 24 2005
Inception

2iiQZ 1jec 31

200 8207

3207

5090

200 200

5000

5000
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STADIUM ERTh HOLDING CORPORAflON

Develonent Slaga Company
Fermedy known as FRS Group Inc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKJ3OLDp EQUITY

Period from Februny 24 2005 Dale of Inception to December 31 2001

Deficit

Addjljonaj Accumuje Lea Total
Common Paid-In

During the
Subacriptfoa Stockho1derStock

Capital yjppmeet Stage Receivable
Equity

IssUed 50000000 Shares of Par Value

$001 issued to the Founders in exchange
fera

rubsciipti on receivable on Feb 24
2005

50000

50000
Issued 5000000 Shares of Par Valuo

5.001 issued is 504offering Feb 242005 5000

5000
Reverse stock

spiit 36667 36667

Net loss

______________ 7607
______________ 7607

Balaee December 312005
11333 36667 7607 50000 2607

NetLos
_________ _________ 200 _________

Balasce December 312006
18333 36667 7807 50000 2807

Netloss

_________ 200 _________
Balance December 312007

18.333 36667 8007 50000 3007
Issued 20000000 Share of Par Value

$001 issued to the Pounders in exchang

Subscription receivable in Auguat
2008

20000

20000
Reverse stock split

13333 13333

Net lois

200
200

Additional paid-in capital

Balance December 312008
25000

8207 70
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STADIUM ENTERTAINMENT HOLDING CORP
FORMERLy FRS GROUP iNC

DEVELOpjs1 STAGE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCju STATEMENTS

Organization

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp the Company formerly known as FRS Group Incwas incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on February 23 2005 to design andcreate prototypes for wide
range of outdoor gear The Company did not generate any revenuesfrom these activities and in August 2008 abandoned its

original business plan Since August2008 the Companys intention has been to serve as vehicle to effect an asset acquisitionmerger exchange of capital stock or other business combination with domestic or foreignbusiness entity It is currently in the development stage

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Company is presented to assist inunderstanding the Companys financial statements The financial statements and notes arerepresentations of the Companys management which is responsible for their
integrity and

objectivity These accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted inthe United States of America and have been consistently applied in the preparation of thefinancial statements

Use of Esti mates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generallyaccepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingentassets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts ofrevenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results may differ from thoseestimates

Revenue Recognition

In accordance Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 SAB 104 Revenue Recognition theCompany recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery hasoccurred the sales price is fixed or determinable and collection is
reasonably assured

In accordance with industry practice and as is customary in many territories certain productssuch as CDs are sold to customers with the right to return unsold items Under Statement ofStandards No 48 Revenue When Right of Return Exists revenue from such sales arerecognized when the products are shipped based on gross sales less provision for estimatedreturns Revenues from the sale of recorded music products through digital distribution channelsare recognized when the products are sold and do not establish provision for customer returns
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In determining estimated returns management will analyze historical trends current economjctrends changes in customer demand and customer acceptance of our product Based on thisinformation management reserves percentage of each dollar of product sales to provide forestimated customer returns

On January 20 2009 the Company granted an exclusive distributor the rights to distribute allrecords produced by the Company for 36 months following the release of the initial albumincluding CD and
digital sales The distribution agreement established specific policies

pertaining to returns price protection and payment terms as described below

The Company has sole
responsibility for merchandise returned to the distributor by customersReturns will be reported to the Company in monthly report as an adjustment to gross sales Inaddition the Company will be assessed

processing fee by the distributor on per unit basis ofall returned items plus any additional costs related to refurbishing damaged inventory

Inventory is considered the possession of the Company and therefore the need to return inventoryto the end user is not necessary If inventory remains unsold for determined period of time thedistributor will charge the Company fee on per unit basis for continued storage if the producthas had annual dollar net sales of less than $15000

The Company designates the wholesale price from price list categories maintained by thedistributor The Company will have to provide written authorization for program discountsissued to customers unless the discount is generally applicable across the distributors entirecatalog

The distributor is required to submit payments three months following the close of the shippingmonth The Company is entitled to collect one hundred percent of adjusted net sales subject towithholding of reserves 25% of gross sales less program discount for products that are subject toreturns the recoupment of any unrecouped advances by the distributor and any additional costsincurred by the distributor on behalf of the Company as mentioned in the distribution agreementIn accordance with the distribution agreement adjusted net sales are calculated by reducing netsales by the distribution fee manufacturing charges the dollar amount of any customer invoicesthat remain outstanding for greater than 180 days following issuance of applicable invoices lessany distribution fee paid on these invoices and Mobile/AV digitization charges Net sales aredetermined by subtracting gross sales by discounts returns rebates credits and adjustments

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided using the asset and
liability method presented by FASB StatementNo 109 Accounting for Income Taxes FAS 109 Under this method income taxes i.edeferred tax assets taxes currently payable/refunds receivable and tax expense are recordedbased on amounts refundable or payable in the current fiscal year and include the results of anydifferences between U.S GAAP and tax reporting Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effectof net

operating loss capital loss and general business credit carryforwards and the net taxeffects of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financialstatements and income tax purposes as determined under enacted tax laws and rates Valuationallowances are established when management determines that it is more likely than not that some
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portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized The fmancial effect of changes in taxlaws is accounted for in the period of enactment

Stadium Entertaimiient Holding Corp is corporation for federal and state income tax reportingpurposes In light of the current year net operating loss incurred the Company has recordedbenefit for federal and state deferred taxes in the amount of $3278 which has been recorded asdeferred tax asset and is the total accumulated deferred tax asset as of December 31 2008 TheCompany has not provided for valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset inasmuch as it
expects to utilize the entire net operating losses against future taxable income Total net
operating loss incurred since inception was $8207 and will expire in 2028 See Note for
detailed breakdown of deferred tax asset and income tax benefit

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006 the FASB issued Interpretation No 48 Accounting for
Uncertainty in IncomeTaxes FiN 48 FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for

uncertainty in income taxes by prescribingapplication of more likely than not threshold to the recognition and derecognition of uncertaintax positions FiN 48 also prescribes guidance on measurement classification interest and
penalties accounting for interim periods and disclosures The Company has elected to defer the
application of FIN 48 until fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 Although the
Company has elected to defer disclosure under FIN 48 its policy for evaluating uncertain tax
positions may not be deferred Accordingly the Company will assess its income tax positionsand record tax benefits based upon managements evaluation of the facts circumstances andinformation available at the reporting dates The impact of this standard is not expected to bematerial to the Companys financial statements

Fair Value ofFinancial Insiruments

The Company estimates the fair value of fmancial instruments using available market
information and valuation methods Considerable judgment is required in estimating fair value
Accordingly the estimates of fair value may not be indicative of the amounts the Company couldrealize in current market exchange As of December 31 2008 the

carrying value of accountspayable and accrued expenses approximated fair value due to the short-term nature and maturityof these instruments

Loss per Common Share

Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing the loss attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding during the periodsDiluted loss per share is computed similar to basic loss per share except that the denominator isincreased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been
outstandingif the potential common shares had been issued and if the additional common shares weredilutive There were no dilutive financial instruments issued or outstanding for any of the

periods presented through December 312008



Development Stage Activities and Going Concern

The Company is currently a-development stage entity because operations have comnenced butsignificant revenue has not been generated therefrom The Company has devoted most of theirefforts to raising capital developing markets and
starting up productions Accordingly the

accompanying financial statements have incorporated the additional information required bySFAS for development stage entities

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company willcontinue as going concern The Company is development stage enterprise and sinceinception has experienced recurring losses from operations and negative cash flows fromoperations These conditions create an uncertainty as to the Companys ability to continue asgoing concern

The accompanying fmancial statements have been prepared in conformity with accountingprinciples generally accepted in the United States of America which contemplate continuation ofthe Company as going concern The Company has not established any source of revenue tocover its
operating costs and as such has incurred an operating loss since inception These andother factors raise substantial doubt about the Companys ability to continue as going concernThe accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustmen to reflect the possiblefuture effects on the

recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classificationof liabilities that may result from the possible inability of the Company to continue as goingconcern

Capital Stock

Upon the formation of the Company 16666667 shares of common stock were issued to thefounding shareholder for an aggregate purchase price of $50000 In April 2005 the Companyissued 1666667 shares of common stock in private offering for an aggregate purchase price of$5000 In August 2008 the Company issued 6666666 shares of common stock in privateoffering for an aggregate purchase price of $20000

Reverse Stock Split

In December 2008 the Company effected one-for-three 1-for-3 reverse split of its Commonstock as further described in the amended and restated certificate of incorporation All share andper share amounts disclosed in the financial statements give retroactive effect to the reverse split

Income Taxes

Deferred tax as of December 31 2008 consisted of the following

Tax credit carryforward
3278

Total deferred tax asset
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Valuation allowance 3278

Net deferred tax asset

Subsequent Event

On January 2009 the Company and the stockholders of Stadium Entertainment CorporationDelaware corporation entered into an Exchange Agreement pursuant to which the stockholdersof Stadium Entertainment Corporation exchanged all of the issued and outstanding shares ofStadium Entertainment Corporation common stock 200 shares for an aggregate of 75000000shares of common stock of the Company As result of the Share Exchange StadiumEntertainment Corporation became wholly owned subsidiary of the Company StadiumEntertainment Corporation is development stage company which was formed to producemarket and distribute prerecorded music products of established
recording artists to raise fundsfor charitable and philanthropic organizations and generate revenues from its activities StadiumEntertainment Corporation also plans to produce live events and concerts assist artists in thedevelopment of their careers and provide distribution services for other record companies
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STADIUM ENTERTArNMENT HOLDING CORP

BALANCE SHEET

September 30 2009

Assets

Current

Cash

7694Accounts receivable less allowance for returns

of $9733

59599
Inventory

4877
Prepaid expenses

846
Employee advances

22000Artist advance royalties recoupable within one year
64891

Total current assets

159907

Artist advance
recoupable after one year

413175

Total assets

Liabilities

Current

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
297185

Royalty payable

9995Accrued interest

189800Deferred income

47592Loans payable

1889800

Total current liabilities

2434372

Total liabilities

2434372

Stockholders equity deficit

Common stock

100000llnexercised stock options

113000Additional paid in capital

33007Accumulated deficit

J19712831

179 1290

Less subscription receivable 70
Total stockholders

equity deficit

18612
Total liabilities and stockholders

equity
573082
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STADIUM ENTERTAINMENT HOLDING CORP

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Period January 2009 to September 30 2009

Revenue

Sales net of provision for estimated

returns of $59183

Cost of sales

Product costs

Royalties

Licensing fees

Non-recoupable production costs

Total cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses

Total
operating expenses

Loss from operations

Other expense

Interest income

Interest expense

Total other expense

Loss before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net Loss

Loss per Common share

Weighted average shares
outstanding

115206

8871

9995

16290

35024

70180

45026

817118

817118

7720

2559

125459

897542

1244

898786

100000000
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STADIUM ENTERTAINMENT HOLDING CORP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period.January 2009 to September 30 2009

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

898786Adjustments to reconcile net loss to

net cash used in operating activities

Non-cash stock based compensation expense
113000Increase in

Accounts receivable

59599
Inventory

4877
Prepaid expenses

1224
Employee Advances

22000
Artist advance

royalties recoupable within one year 102851
Artist advance recoupable after one year

245433Increase in

Accounts payable accrued expenses
291404

Royalty payable

9995Accrued interest

125359Deferred income
47592

Net cash used in operating activities

539270

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from loan payable
525000

Net cash provided by fmancing activities
525000

Net increase in cash

14270

Cash January 12009
21964

Cash September 30 2009
7694
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STADIUM TAINMENr HOLDING CORP

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOC1G1OW EQIJrrY

For the Period
January 2009 to Scptemb 302009

Addtjonsl Unexerersed
Less

TotalCornnmn -1n Stock Accumulaud
Subscription StockholdesStock

Capital
Options DeOcit eceivable

Equity

Balasce January 2009
75000 74800

1072497 10727
Issuance of 250OOOOO to

sharsholdecr of Stadium Entertajixercot

Holding aap share exchang5 agreement

completed Jsriuuy 12009 25000

25000
Net adjustmee to subuctibdon receivable

per share xchange agreement

70000 70000
Nat adjustment to additonal

paid-in

capital par shire
exchange agreement 41793

41793
Issuance of 3000000 sheen of

Unexcercised stock options

113.000

113000
Net loss

______________ 898 898786
Balaace Septmbcy 3I 2009

100000
33007 113000 1971283 70000 I8
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STADIUM ENTERTAINMENT HOLDING CORP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization and Basis of Presentation

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp the Company formerly known as FRS Group Inc

was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on February 23 2005 to design and

create prototypes for wide range of outdoor gear The Company did not generate any revenues

from these activities and in August 2008 abandoned its original business plan Since August

2008 the Companys intention has been to serve as vehicle to effect an asset acquisition

merger exchange of capital stock or other business combination with domestic or foreign

business entity

On January 2009 the Company entered into Share Exchange Agreement reverse merger

with Stadium Entertainment Corp Stadium Delaware corporation and its stockholders

pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire 100 percent of outstanding shares of Stadium

in exchange for 75000000 shares of the Company The reverse merger has been recorded as

recapitalization of the Company with the net assets of Stadium and the Company brought

forward at their historical bases The costs associated with the reverse merger have been

expensed as incurred

The Company now intends to produce market and distribute prerecorded music products of

established recording artists to raise funds for charitable and philanthropic organizations and

generate revenues for the Company The Company also plans to produce live events and

concerts assist artists in the development of their careers and provide distribution services for

other record companies

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Company is presented to assist in

understanding the Companys financial statements The financial statements and notes are

representations of the Companys management which is responsible for their integrity and

objectivity These accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the

financial statements The financial statements have prepared by the Company without audit

Certain information and disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States have condensed or

omitted These financial statements reflect all adjustments consisting only of normal recurring

adjustments that in the opinion of management are necessary to present fairly the financial

position results of operations and cash flows of the Company for the periods presented The

results of operations for the three month period presented are not necessarily indicative of the

results to be expected for the full year
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results may differ from those

estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all cash on hand cash accounts without withdrawal restrictions and

highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase to be

considered cash and cash equivalents

Revenue Recognition

In accordance Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 SAB 104 Revenue Recognition the

Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has

occurred the sales price is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured

In accordance with industry practice and as is customary in many territories certain products

such as CDs are sold to customers with the right to return unsold items Under Statement of

Standards No 48 FAS 48 Revenue When Right of Return Exists revenues from such

sales are recognized when the products are shipped by the distributor and are based on gross

sales less provision for estimated returns Revenues from the sale of recorded music products

through digital distribution channels are recognized when the products are downloaded and the

electronic payment has posted The Company does not establish provision for customer returns

for digital download sales

In determining estimated returns management will analyze historical industry trends current

economic trends changes in customer demand and customer acceptance of our product Based

on this information management reserves percentage of each dollar of product sales to provide

for estimated customer returns Based on managements experience in the industry and historical

returns the Company has established an initial provision of thirty five percent 5% of CD sales

On January 20 2009 the Company granted an exclusive distributor the rights to distribute all

records produced by the Company for 36 months following the release of the initial album

including CD and digital sales The distribution agreement established specific policies

pertaining to returns price protection and payment terms as described below

The Company has sole responsibility for merchandise returned to the distributor by customers

Returns will be reported to the Company in sales report provided by the distributor as an

adjustment to gross sales In addition the Company will be assessed processing fee by the

distributor on per unit basis of all returned items plus any additional costs related to

refurbishing damaged inventory

Inventory is considered the possession of the Company as the distributor does not take ownership
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under the terms of the agreement If inventory remains unsold for determined period of time

the distributor will charge the Company fee on per unit basis for continued storage if the

product has had annual dollar net sales of less than $15000 See Inventory note under Summary

of Significant Accounting Policies for accounting treatment

The Company designates the wholesale price from price list categories maintained by the

distributor The Company will have to provide written authorization for program discounts

issued to customers unless the discount is generally applicable across the distributors entire

catalog

The distributor is required to submit payments three months following the close of the shipping

month The Company is entitled to collect one hundred percent of adjusted net sales subject to

withholding of reserves 25% of gross sales less program discount for products that are subject to

returns the recoupment of any unrecouped advances by the distributor and any additional costs

incurred by the distributor on behalf of the Company as mentioned in the distribution agreement

In accordance with the distribution agreement adjusted net sales are calculated by reducing net

sales by the distribution fee manufacturing charges the dollar amount of any customer invoices

that remain outstanding for greater than 180 days following issuance of applicable invoices less

any distribution fee paid on these invoices and Mobile/AV digitization charges Net sales are

determined by subtracting gross sales by discounts returns rebates credits and adjustments

The following sets forth components of net sales for the nine months ended September 30 2009

Gross CD Sales $169097

Digital Sales 7630

Provision for sales returns and allowances 9733
Discounts 2338
Sales Returns 49450

Net Sales $115206

The Company has entered into licensing agreement with their exclusive distributor with respect

to the international release of the album True to the Game The Company will recognize revenue

in accordance with FAS 48 on percentage basis of net sales See Note for further detail of the

agreement

In August 2009 the Company established its Associated Label Division to increase its

emphasis on providing distribution and other services to independent record and entertainment

companies The Company plans to structure its arrangements with independent record and

entertainment companies to provide for fixed administrative fee for its services and

distribution fee based upon percentage of sales In accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin

No 104 SAB 104 Revenue Recognition the Company recognizes revenue when

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred the sales price is fixed or

determinable and collection is reasonably assured The Company will recognize revenue related

to the fixed administrative fee ratably over the service life of the contract in accordance with

SAB 104 The distribution fee charged based on percentage of gross product sales will be

accounted for in accordance with FAS 48
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The accounting issue that will arise in these arrangements is whether the Company should report

revenue based on the gross amount billed to independent record and entertainment companies

or on the net amount received from the customer after distribution fees have been paid to third

parties To the extent revenues are recorded gross in the full amount billed any distribution

fees are recorded as expenses so that the net amount gross revenues less expenses flows

through operating income As result the impact on net income is the same whether the

Company records the revenue on gross or net basis

The Company will record revenue on gross or net basis based on the terms of the arrangement

The Company will evaluate each agreement to determine if they are acting as the principal or

as an agent in the transaction The Company will report revenue on gross basis if they are

acting as principal in the arrangement and on net basis if they are acting as an agent

In determining whether the Company serves as principal or agent in these arrangements the

Company follows the guidance in EITF 99-19 Reporting Revenue Gross as Principal versus

Net as an Agent EITF 99-19 Pursuant to such guidance the Company serves as the

principal in transactions where the Company has the substantial risks and rewards of ownership

The indicators that the Company has substantial risks and rewards of ownership are as follows

the Company is the supplier of the products or services to customer

the Company has latitude in establishing prices

the Company has the contractual relationship with the ultimate customer

the Company modifies and services the product purchased to meet the ultimate customer

specifications

the Company has discretion in supplier selection and

the Company has credit risk

Conversely pursuant to EITF 99-19 the Company serves as agent in arrangements where the

Company does not have substantial risks and rewards of ownership The indicators that the

Company does not have substantial risks and rewards of ownership are as follows

the supplier not Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp is responsible for providing the

product or service to the customer

the supplier not Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp has latitude in establishing

prices

the amount the Company earns is fixed

the supplier not Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp has credit risk and

the supplier not Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp has general inventory risk for

product before it is sold

Based on the above criteria the Company will record the distribution of product on behalf of

third-party record labels on gross basis subject to the terms of the contract

Inventory
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Inventories consist of CDs and related music products Inventory is stated at lower of cost or net

realizable value Cost is determined using first-in first-out FIFO methodology Returned

goods included in inventory are valued at net realizable value but not in excess of cost

Processing and refurbishing costs of returned inventory are expensed as incurred

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided using the asset and liability method presented by FASB Statement

No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes FAS 109 Under this method income taxes i.e

deferred tax assets taxes currently payable/refunds receivable and tax expense are recorded

based on amounts refundable or payable in the current fiscal year and include the results of any

differences between U.S GAAP and tax reporting Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effect

of net operating loss capital loss and general business credit carryforwards and the net tax

effects of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial

statements and income tax purposes as determined under enacted tax laws and rates The

financial effect of changes in tax laws is accounted for in the period of enactment Valuation

allowances are established when management determines that it is more likely than not that some

portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized in accordance with SFAS 109 In

circumstances where there is sufficient negative evidence establishment of valuation

allowance must be considered The Company believes that losses since inception represent

sufficient negative evidence to consider valuation allowance under the provisions SFAS 109

As result the Company determined that its deferred tax assets required the establishment of

valuation allowance

The realization of the remaining deferred tax assets is primarily dependent on forecasted future

taxable income The valuation allowance that has been established will be maintained until there

is sufficient positive evidence to conclude that it is more likely than not that such assets will be

realized An ongoing pattern of profitability will generally be considered as sufficient positive

evidence Our income tax expense recorded in the future may be reduced to the extent of

offsetting decreases in our valuation allowance The establishment and reversal of valuation

allowances could have significant positive or negative impact on future earnings

Stadium Entertainment Corp is corporation for federal and state income tax reporting

purposes In light of the current year net operating loss incurred the Company has recorded

benefit for federal and state deferred taxes in the amount of $562481 which has been recorded as

deferred tax asset The Company has provided valuation allowance for the entire portion of

the deferred tax asset due to the sufficient negative evidence present Total net operating loss

incurred since inception was $1341209 and will expire in 2028 See Note for detailed

breakdown of deferred tax asset

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company estimates the fair value of financial instruments using available market

information and valuation methods Considerable judgment is required in estimating fair value

Accordingly the estimates of fair value may not be indicative of the amounts the Company could
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realize in current market exchange As of September 30 2009 the carrying value of accounts

payable and accrued expenses approximated fair value due to the short-term nature and maturity

of these instruments

Loss per Common Share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to the common stockholders

by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period

Diluted loss per share is computed similar to basic loss per share except that the denominator is

increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding

if the potential common shares had been issued and if the additional common shares were

dilutive There were no dilutive financial instruments issued or outstanding for the period ended

September 30 2009

Development Stage Entity and Going Concern

As of September 30 2009 the Company is no longer considered to be in the development stage

as the Company has recognized significant revenue from operations The Company had been

considered development stage entity for the year ended December 31 2008 has principal

operations had commenced but the Company had not generated significant revenues therefrom

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will

continue as going concern While the management of the Company believes that the Company

will be successful in its capital formation and operating activities there can be no assurance that

it will be able to raise additional capital or be able to generate sufficient revenues to sustain its

operations These conditions create an uncertainty as to the Companys ability to continue as

going concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America which contemplate continuation of

the Company as going concern The Company has not established significant source of

revenue to cover its operating costs and as such has incurred an operating loss since inception

These and other factors raise substantial doubt about the Companys ability to continue as

going concern The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect

the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and

classification of liabilities that may result from the possible inability of the Company to continue

as going concern

Artist Advances

The Company paid advances to artists and producers with respect to future sales The Company

accounts for these advanced payments under the related guidance in Statement of Financial

Accounting Standard No 50 Financial Reporting in the Record and Music Industry FAS
50 Under FAS 50 the Company capitalized as assets advanced payments that management

believes are recoverable from future sales
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Managements decision to capitalize an advance to an artist or producer as an asset requires

significant judgment as to the recoverability of those assets The recoverability of these assets is

assessed upon initial commitment of the advance based upon managements anticipated revenues

from sales of future music and publishing related products In determining whether these

amounts are recoverable management evaluates the current and past popularity of the artist the

initial or expected commercial acceptability of the product the current and past genre of music

that the product is designed to appeal to and other relevant factors Any portion of such

advances not deemed to be recoupable from future royalties is expensed at the balance sheet

date All advances are assessed continuously and at minimum on quarterly basis

As of September 30 2009 the Company had $478066 of advances on the balance sheet of

which $64891 is considered current as the Company anticipates recouping this amount within

period of one year or less As of September 30 2009 $16290 of advances had been expensed

With respect to the $478066 of artist advances discussed above $461292 pertains to the signing

of license agreements with the artists and producers and $16774 relates to the completion and

delivery of the Master

Loans payable

As of September 30 2009 the holder of 7.5% of the Companys outstanding shares loaned an

aggregate of $1489800 to the Company under loan agreement which provides for interest on

the unpaid principal balance at rate often percent 10% per annum All amounts payable

under the loan became due on February 14 2009 The lender has not agreed to extend the

maturity date of the loan and no assurance can be given that the lender will not elect to pursue

remedies against us substantial portion of the proceeds of this offering will be used to repay

this debt which will reduce the amount of funds available to support our business operations

The loan is secured by all of the Companys rights title and interest in its compilation album

commemorating the Negro Baseball League Museum and any sequels thereto including the

Companys rights
in the master recording included in the album its agreement with the Negro

Baseball League Museum and all contracts products and proceeds of any of the foregoing

In July 2009 the holder of 37.5% of the Companys outstanding shares agreed to extend the date

by which interest on the $1489800 loan made by it to the Company must be paid until the

earlier of June 30 2010 or the Companys receipt of $2500000 or more of cash proceeds from

the Companys proposed offering of common stock under Regulation of the Securities Act of

1933 as amended

During the nine months ended September 30 2009 the Company issued $180000 of short term

notes that are convertible into common stock under convertible note agreements which provides

for interest on the unpaid principal balance at rate of ten percent 10% per annum All

amounts outstanding under the notes became due as of September 30 2009 The holders of the

notes have the right to convert this debt into common stock at the conversion price established in

the convertible note agreements The conversion price is equivalent to the greater of 75% of the

per share closing market price of the Companys common stock on the first day of reported

trading day or $.25 In addition the Company borrowed an aggregate of $220000 during the

nine months ended September 30 2009 which is represented by promissory notes bearing
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interest at rate often percent 10% per annum Ofthis amount $20000 became due in

September 2009 $150000 becomes due on November 15 2009 and $50000 becomes due on

December 12 2009

Deferred Income

During the period ending September 30 2009 the Company entered into licensing agreement

with their exclusive distributor related to the international release of their album True to the

Game The Company will receive percentage of net sales in accordance with the terms of the

agreement Based on the terms of the agreement the distributor agreed to provide an advance to

the Company with respect to future sales As of September 30 2009 the Company received an

advance totaling $47592

Common Stock

Upon the formation of the Company 16666667 shares post reverse stock split of common

stock were issued to the founding shareholder for an aggregate purchase price of $50000 In

April 2005 the Company issued 1666667 shares post reverse stock split of common stock in

private offering for an aggregate purchase price of $5000 In August 2008 the Company issued

6666666 shares çost reverse stock split of common stock in private offering for an aggregate

purchase price of $20000

In December 2008 the Company effected one-for-three -for-3 reverse split of its common

stock as further described in the amended and restated certificate of incorporation All references

contained in the accompanying financial statements and related notes have been adjusted to give

effect for the stock split

On January 2009 the Company acquired through the share exchange agreement all of the

outstanding shares of common stock of Stadium Entertainment Corp Stadium and the

former stockholders of Stadium were issued an aggregate of 75000000 shares of the Companys

common stock in exchange for their shares of Stadium common stock As result of the share

exchange agreement the former stockholders of Stadium became the majority stockholders of

the Company This transaction was accounted for as reverse merger and reorganization of

capital with the assets and liabilities of the entities being brought over at their historical cost

bases

The Company has 100000000 shares of par value $.001 common stock issued and outstanding

as of September 30 2009

In August 2009 the Company granted options to acquire an aggregate of 3000000 shares of

Common Stock to three consultants The options which have term often years have exercise

price of $.25 per share Options with respect to an aggregate of 1020000 immediately upon

grant and options with respect to an aggregate of 990000 shares vest on each of the six month

and one year of the date of the grant

The Company accounts for share based payments in accordance with FAS Statement No 123

Share Based Payment FAS 123R FAS 123R requires all share-based payments to non
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employees including grants of stock options to be recognized as compensation expense based

on the fair value of services received or the fair value of equity instruments issued whichever is

more reliablymeasurable

In accordance with EITF 96-18 Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to Other

Than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services to account

for stock-based compensation issued to non-employees the Company will measure the services

performed based on the date in which the performance commitment was reached and such

services will be recorded at fair value of the services rendered The Company recognized

compensation expense of $113000 as result of the stock options granted Granting of stock

options of $113000 is presented as compensation and is included in professional services

expense as the options were issued to consultants of the Company As of September 30 2009 no

options were exercised The options are presented as Unexercised Stock Options on the Balance

Sheet

Income Taxes

Deferred tax as of September 30 2009 consisted of the following

Accrued interest 25738

Charity 1064

Tax credit carryforward 535679

Total deferred tax asset 562481

Valuation Allowance 562481

Net deferred tax asset

Provision for income taxes for the period ended September 30 2009 consisted of the following

Provision for income taxes 1.244

Related Party

During the period ending September 30 2009 the Company advanced an aggregate of $22000 to

three employees for services performed Of the $22000 $10000 was advanced to

director/shareholder of the Company

10 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets

and Liabilities SFAS No 159 which permits entities to measure many financial instruments

and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value
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An entity would report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option had

been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date The objective is to improve financial

reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earrings

caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex

hedge accounting provisions The decision about whether to elect the fair value option is applied

instrument by instrument with few exceptions the decision is irrevocable and it is applied

only to entire instruments and not to portions of instruments The statement requires disclosures

that facilitate comparisons between entities that choose different measurement attributes for

similarassets and liabilities and between assets and liabilities in the financial statements of an

entity that selects different measurement attributes for similarassets and liabilities SFAS No

159 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15

2007 Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of fiscal year provided the entity also

elects to apply the provisions of SFAS No 157 Upon implementation an entity shall report the

effect of the first re-measurement to fair value as cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening

balance of retained earnings Since the provisions of SFAS No 159 are applied prospectively

any potential impact will depend on the instruments selected for fair value measurement at the

time of implementation The management of the Company is of the opinion that the adoption of

this new pronouncement will not have an impact on its financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated

Financial Statements an amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS No 160 which establishes

accounting and reporting standards to improve the relevance comparability and transparency of

financial information in its consolidated financial statements This is accomplished by requiring

all entities except not-for-profit organizations that prepare consolidated financial statements to

clearly identify label and present ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties

other than the parent in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity but

separate from the parents equity

clearly identify and present both the parents and the noncontrollings interest attributable

consolidated net income on the face of the consolidated statement of income

consistently account for changes in parents ownership interest while the parent retains it

controlling financial interest in subsidiary and for all transactions that are economically

similar to be accounted for similarly

measure of any gain loss or retained noncontrolling equity at fair value after subsidiary

is deconsolidated and

provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of

the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners

This statement also clarifies that noncontrolling interest in subsidiary is an ownership interest

in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial

statements SFAS No 160 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods on or after December

15 2008 The management of the Company does not expect the adoption of this pronouncement

to have material impact on its financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued FASB Statement No 161 Disclosures about Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities an amendment of FASB Statement 133 SFAS No 161
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SFAS No 161 enhances required disclosures regarding derivatives and hedging activities

including enhanced disclosures regarding how an entity uses derivative instruments

derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No 133

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and derivative instruments

and related hedged items affect an entitys financial position financial performance and cash

flows Specifically SFAS No 161 requires

Disclosure of the objectives for using derivative instruments be disclosed in terms of

underlying risk and accounting designation

Disclosure of the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in

tabular format

Disclosure of information about credit-risk-related contingent features and

Cross-reference from the derivative footnote to other footnotes in which derivative-

related information is disclosed

SFAS No 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15

2008 Earlier application is encouraged The management of the Company does not expect the

adoption of this pronouncement to have material impact on its financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued FASB Statement No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles SFAS No 162 SFAS No 162 identifies the sources of accounting

principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial

statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles in the United States of America The sources of accounting principles that

are generally accepted are categorized in descending order as follows

FASB Statements of Financial Accounting Standards and Interpretations FASB

Statement 133 Implementation Issues FASB Staff Positions and American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants AICPA Accounting Research Bulletins and Accounting

Principles Board Opinions that are not superseded by actions of the FASB

FASB Technical Bulletins and if cleared by the FASB AICPA Industry Audit and

Accounting Guides and Statements of Position

AICPA Accounting Standards Executive Committee Practice Bulletins that have been

cleared by the FASB consensus positions of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force

EITF and the Topics discussed in Appendix of EITF Abstracts EITF D-Topics

Implementation guides QAs published by the FASB staff AICPA Accounting

Interpretations AICPA Industry Audit and Accounting Guides and Statements of

Position not cleared by the FASB and practices that are widely recognized and prevalent

either generally or in the industry

SFAS No 162 is effective 60 days following the SECs approval of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board amendment to its authoritative literature It is only effective for

nongovernmental entities therefore the GAAP hierarchy will remain in SAS 69 for state and
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local governmental entities and federal governmental entities The management of the Company

does not expect the adoption of this pronouncement to have material impact on its financial

statements

On May 26 2008 the FASB issued FASB Statement No 163 Accounting for Financial

Guarantee Insurance Contracts SFAS No 163 SFAS No 163 clarifies how FASB

Statement No 60 Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises SFAS No 60
applies to financial guarantee insurance contracts issued by insurance enterprises including the

recognition and measurement of premium revenue and claim liabilities It also requires

expanded disclosures about financial guarantee insurance contracts

The accounting and disclosure requirements of SFAS No 163 are intended to improve the

comparability and quality of information provided to users of financial statements by creating

consistency Diversity exists in practice in accounting for financial guarantee insurance

contracts by insurance enterprises under SFAS No 60 Accounting and Reporting by Insurance

Enterprises That diversity results in inconsistencies in the recognition and measurement of

claim liabilities because of differing views about when loss has been incurred under FASB

Statement No Accounting for Contingencies SFAS No SFAS No 163 requires that

an insurance enterprise recognize claim liability prior to an event of default when there is

evidence that credit deterioration has occurred in an insured financial obligation It also requires

disclosure about the risk-management activities used by an insurance enterprise to evaluate

credit deterioration in its insured financial obligations and the insurance enterprises

surveillance or watch list

SFAS No 163 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after

December 15 2008 and all interim periods within those fiscal years except for disclosures

about the insurance enterprises risk-management activities Disclosures about the insurance

enterprises risk-management activities are effective the first period beginning after issuance of

SFAS No 163 Except for those disclosures earlier application is not permitted The

management of the Company does not expect the adoption of this pronouncement to have

material impact on its financial statements
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11 Subsequent Event

In accordance with SFAS No 165 effective for interim or annual financial periods ending after

June 15 2009 the entity should disclose the date through which subsequent events have been

evaluated as well as whether that date is the date the financial statements were issued or the date

the financial statements were available to be issued As such the Company has evaluated

subsequent events through October 28 2009 the date on which the financial statements were

available to be issued and determined no disclosure is necessary
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STADIUM ENTERTA1NMENT CORPORATION
Development Stage Company

BALANCE SHEET

December 31 2008

RestatedAssets

Current

Cash
21964

Prepaid expenses
2070

Artist advance royalties recoupable within year 167742

Total current assets

191776

Artist advances recoupable after one year
167742

Total assets

359518

Liabilities

Current

Accrued expenses
2574Accrued interest

64441Loan payable

1364800

Total current liabilities

1431815

Total liabilities

1431815

Stockholders equity deficit

Common stock

75000Additional paid in capital

74800Deficit accumulated during the development stage
__J1 072

Total stockholders
equity deficit

0722
Total liabilities and stockholders equity

359518
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STADIUM ENTERTAINM CORPORATION
Development Stage Company

STATEIV1EJT OF OPERATIONS

For the Period Januaiy 2008 Date of Inception to December 31 2008

Restated
Revenue

Cost ofSales

Non-recoupable production costs

38453
Total cost of sales

38453
Gross profit

3845
Operating expenses

General and admjnjstraijve
expenses

969603
Total

operating expenses

969603
Loss from operations

I008
Other expense

Interest expense

64441
Total other expense

64441
Net loss

jjl072497
Loss per common share

0.01

Weighted average shares outstanding

75000000
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STADIUM ENTERTAINNT CORPORATION
Development Stage Company

STATEM OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period January 2008 Date of Inception to December 31 2008

RestatedCash flows from operating activities

Net loss

1072497Adjustments to reconcile net loss to

net cash used in operating activities

Increase in

Prepaid expenses
2070Artist advance

royalties

335484Increase in

Accrued expenses
2574Accrued interest

64441

Net cash used in operating activities

1343O

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of common stock

200Proceeds from loan payable
1364800

Net cash provided by financing activities

1365000

Net increase in cash

21964

Cash January 2008

Cash December 31 2008

21964
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STADIUM ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION

Development Stage Company

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKJjOLDp EQUITY

For the Period January 32008 Date of Inception to December 31 2008

Deficit

Additional AccwnuIatej Total
Common Paid-In

During the Stockholders
Stock

Capital Development Stage Equity

Balance January 2008

Issuance of 75000000 shares of common
stock on Jan 12009 presented reiroactively

as if the share exchange agreement occurred

on January 2008 when the Company was
formed

75000
75000

Net loss Restated

1072497 1072497
Net adjustment to additional paid-in

capital per share
exchange agreement 74800

74800

Balance December 312008 Restated 75000 74800 1072 I0727
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STADIUM ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
DEVELOpMENT STAGE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization

Stadium Entertainment Corporation the Company was incorporated under the laws of the
State of Delaware on January 2008 The Company is development stage company which wasformed to produce market and distribute prerecorded music products of established recordingartists to raise funds for charitable and philanthropic organizations and generate revenues for theCompany The Company also plans to produce live events and concerts assist artists in the
development of their careers and provide distribution services for other record companies

The footnote disclosures and accompanying financial statements are prepared to give retroactiveeffect to share exchange agreement reverse merger commenced on January 2009between the Company and Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp Holding

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Company is presented to assist in
understanding the Companys financial statements The financial statements and notes are
representations of the Companys management which is responsible for their

integrity and
objectivity These accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted inthe United States of America and have been

consistently applied in the preparation of the
financial statements

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingentassets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results may differ from those
estimates

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided using the asset and
liability method presented by FASB StatementNo 109 Accounting for Income Taxes SFAS 109 Under this method income taxes i.edeferred tax assets taxes currently payable/refunds receivable and tax expense are recordedbased on amounts refundable or payable in the current fiscal year and include the results of anydifferences between U.S GAAP and tax reporting Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effectof net operating loss capital loss and general business credit carryforwarcis and the net tax

effects of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial
statements and income tax purposes as determined under enacted tax laws and rates The
financial effect of changes in tax laws is accounted for in the period of enactment
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Valuation allowances are established when management determines that it is more likely than
riot that some portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized in accordance withSFAS 109 In circumstances where there is sufficient negative evidence establishment ofvaluation allowance must be considered The Company believes that losses since inceptionrepresent sufficient negative evidence to consider valuation allowance under the provisionsSFAS 109 As result we determined that our deferred tax assets required the establIshment ofvaluation allowance

The realization of the remaining deferred tax assets is primarily dependent on forecasted futuretaxable income The valuation allowance that has been established will be maintained until thereis sufficient positive evidence to conclude that it is more likely than not that such assets will berealized An ongoing pattern of
profitability will generally be considered as sufficient positiveevidence Our income tax expense recorded in the future may be reduced to the extent of

offsetting decreases in our valuation allowance The establishment and reversal of valuationallowances could have significant positive or negative impact on future earnings

Stadium Entertainment Corp is corporation for federal and state income tax reportingpurposes In light of the current year net operating loss incurred the Company has recordedbenefit for federal and state deferred taxes in the amount of $559203 which has been recorded asdeferred tax asset The Company has provided valuation allowance for the entire portion ofthe deferred tax asset due to the sufficient negative evidence present Total net operating lossincurred since inception was $1333002 and will expire in 2028 See Note for detailedbreakdown of deferred tax asset

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006 the FASE issued
Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in IncomeTaxes FIN 48 FiN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribingapplication of more likely than not threshold to the recognition and derecognition of uncertaintax positions FIN 48 also prescribes guidance on measurement classification interest and

penalties accounting for interim periods and disclosures The Company has elected to defer theapplication of FIN 48 until fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 Although theCompany has elected to defer disclosure under FiN 48 its policy for evaluating uncertain taxpositions may not be deferred Accordingly the Company will assess its income tax positionsand record tax benefits based upon managements evaluation of the facts circumstances andinformation available at the reporting dates The impact of this standard is not expected to bematerial to the Companys financial statements

Fair Value ofFinancial Instruments

The Company estimates the fair value of financial instruments using available marketinformation and valuation methods Considerable judgment is required in estimating fair valueAccordingly the estimates of fair value may not be indicative of the amounts the Company couldrealize in current market exchange As of December 31 2008 the carrying value of accountspayable and accrued expenses approximated fair value due to the short-term nature and maturityof these instruments

F32



Loss per Common Share

Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing the loss attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the periodsDiluted loss per share is computed similar to basic loss per share except that the denominator is
increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstandingif the

potential common shares had been issued and if the additional common shares were
dilutive There were no dilutive financial instruments issued or outstanding for any of the
periods presented through December 31 2008

Development Stage Activities and Going Concern

The Company is currently development stage entity because operations have commenced but
significant revenue has not been generated therefrom The Company has devoted most of theirefforts to raising capital developing markets and starting up productions Accordingly the
accompanying fmancial statements have incorporated the additional information required bySFAS for development stage entities

The accompanying fmancial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as going concern The Company is development stage enterprise and since
inception has experienced recurring losses from operations and negative cash flows from
operations These conditions create an uncertainty as to the Companys ability to continue asgoing concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accountingprinciples generally accepted in the United States of America which contemplate continuation ofthe Company as going concern The Company has not generated revenues to cover its

operating costs and as such has incurred an operating loss since inception Further as ofDecember 31 2008 the cash resources of the Company were insufficient to meet its currentbusiness plan These and other factors raise substantial doubt about the Companys ability tocontinue as going concern The accompanying fmancial statements do not include anyadjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the
recoverability and classification of assetsor the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the possible inability of the

Company to continue as going concern

Artist Advances

The Company paid advances to artists and producers with respect to future sales The Companyaccounts for these advanced payments under the related guidance in Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No 50 Financial Reporting in the Record and Music Industry FAS50 Under FAS 50 the Company capitalized as assets advanced payments that managementbelieves are recoverable from future sales

Managements decision to
capitalize an advance to an artist or producer as an asset requires

significant judgment as to the
recoverability of those assets The

recoverability of these assets isassessed upon initial commitment of the advance based upon managements anticipated revenuesfrom sales of future music and publishing related products In determining whether these
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amounts are recoverable management evaluates the current and past popularity of the artist theinitial or expected commercial
acceptability of the product the current and

past genre of musicthat the product is designed to appeal to and other relevant factors Any portion of suchadvances not deemed to be recoupable from future
royalties is expensed at the balance sheetdate As of December 31 2008 the Company had $335484 of advances on the balance sheet ofwhich $167742 is considered current as the Company anticipates recouping this amount within

period of one year or less As of December 31 2008 $0 of advances had been expensed

With respect to the artist advances discussed above $318710 pertain to the signing of licenseagreements with the artists and producers and $16774 relates to the completion and delivery ofthe Master

Loan payable shareholder

During the year ended December 31 2008 the holder of 37.5% of the Companys outstandingshares loaned an aggregate of$ 1364800 to the Company under loan agreement which
provides for interest on the unpaid principal balance at rate often percent 10% per annumAll amounts payable under the loan become due on February 14 2009 The loan is secured byall of the Companys rights title and interest in its compilation album commemorating the NegroBaseball League Museum and any sequels thereto including the Companys rights in the master
recording included in the album its agreement with the Negro Baseball League Museum and allcontracts products and proceeds of any of the foregoing

Capital Stock

In January 2008 200 shares of common stock were issued to the founding shareholders of theCompany As result of the share exchange agreement completed on January 2009 the
founding shareholders received 75000000 shares of par value $.00l common stock of the
surviving company after the reverse merger in exchange for the 200 shares issued and
outstanding To give effect to this transaction the accompanying financial statements have beenrestated as if the transaction occurred at inception

The Company has 75000000 shares of par value $.00l common stock issued and outstanding asof December 31 2008

Income Taxes

Deferred tax as of December 31 2008 consisted of the following

Accrued interest
25738

Charity
1064

Tax credit carryforward
_________

Total deferred tax asset 559203

Valuation allowance

Net deferred tax asset
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Subsequent Event

On January 2009 the Company and the stockholders of Stadium Entertainment HoldingCorp Nevada Corp entered into share exchange agreement pursuant to which the
stockholders of the Company exchanged their outstanding shares of the Company 200 for75000000 shares of Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp The accompanying financial
statements have been presented as if this share exchange occurred at inception of the CompanyAs result of the share exchange agreement on January 2009 the Companys shareholdersbecame the majority owners of Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp This transaction wasaccounted for as reverse merger and reorganization of capital with the assets and liabilities ofthe entities being brought over at their historical cost bases

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Financing Activities

To give effect to the reverse merger completed on January 2009 in which the foundingshareholders of the Company received 75000000 shares in exchange for the 200 shares
previously issued the Company increased common stock and reduced additional paid-in capitalby $74800

To record the issuance of 25000000 shares to the shareholders of Stadium EntertainmentHolding Corp in accordance with the share exchange agreement the Company increasedcommon stock by $25000 and additional
paid-in capital by $45000 and reduced subscriptionreceivable by $70000

10 Restatement

The Companys previously issued financial statements submitted to the Securities and ExchangeCommission on June 2009 with Offering Form 1-A have been restated After discussion withthe staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission the Companys management determinedthat the net deferred tax asset and income tax benefit were overstated due to the failure to
properly establish valuation allowance in light of the

existing negative factors referenced inSFAS 109 See below for the cumulative adjustments The net loss per share remainedunchanged as result of the adjustment at $.O1

Changes to Balance Sheet

As of December 31 2008
AReDorted Adjustments ateed

Deferred Tax Asset
559203 $55 9203TotalAssets

$918721 $559203 359518Accumulated Deficit
$513294 $559203 1072497Total Stockholders Deficit $513094 $559203 1072297
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Changes to Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2008
As Reported Adjustments Restated

Income Tax Benefit
559203 $559203

Net Loss
$513294 $559203 1072497

Changes to Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

AReported Adjustments Rstated

Net Loss
$513294 $559203 1072497Adjustment for Deferred Tax Asset $559203 559203

Changes to Statement of Stockholders Equity

For the Year Ended December 31 2008
As Reported Adjustments Rstated

Net Loss
$513294 $559203 1072497Accumulated Deficit $513294 $559203 1072497Total Stockholders Deficit $513094 $559203 1072297
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STADITj.j ENTERTAINMEI.-1- HOLDrNCI CORP
Developmenj Stage Company

PRO FORMA BALANCE SHEET

December 31 2008

Restated Restated
Stadium

Stadium

Entertainment
Entertainment Pro Forms

RestatedCorp Holding Corp 44justments Pro FormsAssets ________________ __________________

Current

Cash

21964
21964Prepaid expenses

2070
2070Artist advance

recoupable within one year 167742
167742

Total current assets
191776

191776
Artist advances

recoupable after one year 167742

167742
Total assets

359518
$359513

Liabilities

Current

Account payable accrued expenses 2574 3207
5781

Accrued interest

64441

64441
Loan payable

1364800
_____________ 1364800

Total current liabilities

1431815 3207
1435022

Total liabilities

1431815 3207
_____________ 1435022

Stockholders equity deficit
Comjnon stock

75000 25000 75000 100000

200Additional paid-in capital
74800 50000 83007 33007

Deficit accumulated during the development stage Q727 8207 8207 2IO72
1072297 66793

1005504
Less subscription receivable

70000 7O
Total stocitholders equity deficit 107227 3207 l0754
Total liabilities and stockholders

equity 359518

359518

Notes

To record the issuance of 75000000 shares of common stock by Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp pursuant to the
Share Exchange Agreement dated as of January 2009 among Stadium Entertainment

Holding Corp and the
shareholders of Stadium Entertainment

To record the
recapitalizatlon of Stadium Entertainment

Holding Corp Which occurred as resuti of the share exchange
fransalon
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STADIUM ENTERTAiNMENT HOLDING CORP

Development Stage Company

PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 312008

Restated Restated

Stadhim Stadium

Entertainment Entertainment Pro Forms

Corp Holding Corp Adjustments Pro Forma

Revenue

Cost of Sales

Nonrecoupable costs
38453

38453

Total cost of sales
38453

38453

Gross profit
38453 38453

Operating expenses

General and administrative expenses 969603 200
969803

Total operating expenses 969603 200
969803

Loss from operations 1008056 200
1008256

Other expense

Interest expense 64441
64441

Total other expense 64441
64441

Net loss Income
1072497 200

1072697

Loss per common share
0.01

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 75000000 25000000 75000000 100000000

Notes

To record the Issuance of 75000000 shares of common stock by Stadium Entertainment
Holding Corp pursuant to theShare Exchange Agreement dated as of January 12009 among Stadium Entertainment

Holding Corp and the shareholders
of Stadbm Entertainment
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_______________-
PART III EXHIBITS

Exhibit Index

Exhibit No Description

2.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Stadium

Entertainment Holding Corp

2.2 By-laws of Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp

4.1 Form of Subscription Agreement

6.1 Distribution Agreement dated as of January 20 2009 EMI Global

Music Services and Stadium Entertainment Corp

6.2 License Agreement dated as of March 25 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and The Dungeon Studios Inc

6.3 License Agreement dated as of May 12 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Hustlenomics LLC

6.4 License Agreement dated as of July 23 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Nappy Boy Digital LLC

6.5 License Agreement dated as of June 30 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Street Show Records

6.6 License Agreement dated as of August 18 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Mental Instruments Music Corp

6.7 License Agreement dated as of February 15 2008 2008 between

Stadium Entertainment Corp and KDI Inc

6.8 License Agreement dated as of July 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Nappy Boy Digital LLC

6.9 License Agreement dated as of August 19 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Face the Music LLC

6.10 License Agreement dated as of August 13 2008 2008 between

Stadium Entertainment Corp and Michael Pierre

6.11 License Agreement dated as of January 2009 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Doggy Style Records Inc

6.12 License Agreement dated as of April 22 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Get It Man Entertainment LLC

42
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6.13 Loan and Security Agreement dated as of February 14 2008

between Sandstone LLC and Stadium Entertainment Corp

6.14 Agreement dated as of September 2006 between Negro Leagues

Baseball Museum and Stadium Records

6.15 Bridge Loan/Convertible Note dated as of February 23 2009 issued

by Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to Frank Barbone

6.16 Bridge Loan/Convertible Note dated as of February 25 2009 issued

by Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to Brian Gerdts and

Alfred Deandrea

6.17 Bridge Loan/Convertible Note dated as of February 23 2009 issued

by Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to Marvin Fuchs

6.18 Bridge Loan Grid Note dated as of February 11 2009 issued by

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to Brian Gerdts and Alfred

Deandrea refiled herewith

6.19 Bridge Loan Grid Note dated as of March 16 2009 issued by

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to McVille Ventures Inc

6.20 Letter Agreement dated July 17 2009 extending payment of

interest under Sandstone LLC Loan Agreement

6.21 License Agreement dated as of October 2008 between Ms

Natalie Hinds professionally known as Macy Gray

6.22 Equity Compensation Plan

6.23 Form of Option Agreement

6.24 Agreement dated as of August 2009 between Fisher Foundation

Inc and Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp

6.25 License Agreement dated as of May 16 2009 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and EMI Records Limited

6.26 Letter Agreement dated November 16 2009 extending payment of

$125000 advance under Sandstone LLC Loan Agreement

6.27 Promissory Note dated as of June 15 2009 issued by Stadium

Entertainment Holding Corp to Frank Barbone filed herewith

Share Exchange Agreement dated as of January 2009 among

Stadium Entertainment Corp Sandstone Investment Partners LLC
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Stadium Entertainment Group LLC Camille Barbone Gary Katz

Jerome Mas and Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp

11 Opinion of Giordano Halleran Ciesla P.C

Filed with the Form 1-A Offering Statement being amended by this Amendment No

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted based upon request for confidential

treatment The non-public information has been filed separately with the Securities and

Exchange Commission

44



The Issuer has duly caused this Amendment No to Offering Statement to be signed on

its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized in the City of New York State of New

York on December 112009

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp

By
Name David Berman

Title Chief Executive Officer

This Amendment No to Offering Statement has been signed by the following persons

in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Thie Date

David Berman

ChiefExecutive Officer and Director December
2009

December

2009

andDirector December 11
2009

SIGNATURES

Name

Director

Barbone

As Attorney in Fact
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EXHIBITS

Exhibit No Description

2.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Stadium

Entertainment Holding Corp

2.2 By-laws of Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp

4.1 Form of Subscription Agreement

6.1 Distribution Agreement dated as of January 20 2009 between EM
Global Music Services and Stadium Entertainment Corp

6.2 License Agreement dated as of March 25 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and The Dungeon Studios Inc

6.3 License Agreement dated as of May 12 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Hustlenomics LLC

6.4 License Agreement dated as of July 23 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Nappy Boy Digital LLC

6.5 License Agreement dated as of June 30 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Street Show Records

6.6 License Agreement dated as of August 18 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Mental Instruments Music Corp

6.7 License Agreement dated as of February 15 2008 2008 between

Stadium Entertainment Corp and KDI Inc

6.8 License Agreement dated as of July 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Nappy Boy Digital LLC

6.9 License Agreement dated as of August 19 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Face the Music LLC

6.10 License Agreement dated as of August 13 2008 2008 between

Stadium Entertainment Corp and Michael Pierre

6.11 License Agreement dated as of January 2009 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Doggy Style Records Inc



6.12 License Agreement dated as of April 22 2008 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and Get It Man Entertainment LLC

6.13 Loan and Security Agreement dated as of February 14 2008

between Sandstone LLC and Stadium Entertainment Corp

6.14 Agreement dated as of September 2006 between Negro Leagues

Baseball Museum and Stadium Records

6.15 Bridge LoanlConvertible Note dated as of February 23 2009 issued

by Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to Frank Barbone

6.16 Bridge Loan/Convertible Note dated as of February 25 2009 issued

by Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to Brian Gerdts and

Alfred Deandrea

6.17 Bridge Loan/Convertible Note dated as of February 23 2009 issued

by Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to Marvin Fuchs

6.18 Bridge Loan Grid Note dated as of February 11 2009 issued by

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to Brian Gerdts and Alfred

Deandrea refiled herewith

6.19 Bridge Loan Grid Note dated as of March 16 2009 issued by

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp to McVille Ventures Inc

6.20 Letter Agreement dated July 17 2009 extending payment of

interest under Sandstone LLC Loan Agreement

6.21 License Agreement dated as of October 2008 between Ms

Natalie Hinds professionally known as Macy Gray

6.22 Equity Compensation Plan

6.23 Form of Option Agreement

6.24 Agreement dated as of August 2009 between Fisher Foundation

Inc and Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp

6.25 License Agreement dated as of May 16 2009 between Stadium

Entertainment Corp and EM Records Limited

6.26 Letter Agreement dated November 16 2009 extending payment of

$125000 advance under Sandstone LLC Loan Agreement

6.27 Promissory Note dated as of June 15 2009 issued by Stadium

Entertainment Holding Corp to Frank Barbone filed herewith
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Share Exchange Agreement dated as of January 2009 among

Stadium Entertainment Corp Sandstone Investment Partners LLC

Stadium Entertainment Group LLC Camille Barbone Gary Katz

Jerome Mas and Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp

11 Opinion of Giordano Halleran Ciesla P.C

Filed with the Form 1-A Offering Statement being amended by this Amendment No

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Filed with Amendment No to the Form 1-A Offering Statement

Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted based upon request for confidential

treatment The non-public information has been filed separately with the Securities and

Exchange Commission
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100

Principal Amount $50000 Issue Date February 11 2009

BRIDGE LOAN GRID NOTE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp Nevada corporation

hereinafter called Borrower hereby promises to pay to the order of Brian Gerdts an

individual with an address at 89-3 70th Avenue Forest Hills New York 11375 and Alfred

Deandrea an individual with an address at 89-3 70th Avenue Forest Hills New York 11375

collectively with Brian Gerdts the Holder without demand the lesser of sum of Fifty

Thousand $50000 Dollars and iithe aggregate principal amount of all loans made by the

Holder under this Note as indicated on the schedule attached hereto thereon on December 12

2009 the Maturity Date

The undersigned hereby expressly authorizes the Holder to record on the schedule on the

reverse hereof the amount and date of each loan made hereunder and the date and amount of each

payment of principal thereon All such notations shall be presumptive as to the correctness

thereof and the aggregate unpaid amount of loans set forth on such schedules shall be presumed

to be the unpaid principal amount hereof so long as the Holder has delivered to the undersigned

copy of the schedule each time new notation was made thereon

ARTICLE

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Maturity Principal and accrued interest under this Note shall become due and

payable on the Maturity Date Borrower mayprepay this note upon not less than ten 10 days prior

written notice to the Holder

1.2 Interest Rate Simple interest payable on this Note shall accrue at the annual rate

often percent 10% and be payable at the request of the Holder on the Maturity Date

accelerated or otherwise when the principal and remaining accrued but unpaid interest shall be

due and payable or sooner as described below

ARTICLE II

EVENT OF DEFAULT

The occurrence of any of the following events of default Event of Default

shall at the option of the Holder hereof make all sums of principal and interest then remaining

unpaid hereon and all other amounts payable hereunder immediately due and payable upon

demand without presentment or grace period all of which hereby are expressly waived except

as set forth below



2.1 Failure to Pay Principal or Interest The Borrower fails to pay any

installment of principal interest or other sum due under this Note when due and such failure

continues for period often 10 business days after the due date

2.2 Receiver or Trustee The Borrower shall make an assignment for the

benefit of creditors or apply for or consent to the appointment of receiver or trustee for it or for

substantial part of its property or business or such receiver or trustee shall otherwise be

appointed without the consent of the Borrower is not dismissed within sixty 60 days of

appointment

2.3 Bankruptcy Bankruptcy insolvency reorganization or liquidation

proceedings or other proceedings or relief under any bankruptcy law or any law or the issuance

of any notice in relation to such event for the relief of debtors shall be instituted by or against the

Borrower and if instituted against Borrower are not dismissed within forty-five 45 days of

initiation

ARTICLE III

MISCELLANEOUS

3.1 Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver No failure or delay on the part of

Holder hereof in the exercise of any power right or privilege hereunder shall operate as waiver

thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power right or privilege preclude

other or further exercise thereof or of any other right power or privilege All rights and remedies

existing hereunder are cumulative to and not exclusive of any rights or remedies otherwise

available

3.2 Notices All notices demands requests consents approvals and other

communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and unless otherwise

specified herein shall be personally served iideposited in the mail registered or certified

return receipt requested postage prepaid iii delivered by reputable air courier service with

charges prepaid or iv transmitted by hand delivery telegram or facsimile addressed as set

forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written

notice Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be

deemed effective upon hand delivery or delivery by facsimile with accurate confirmation

generated by the transmitting facsimile machine at the address or number designated below if

delivered on business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received or

the first business day following such delivery ifdelivered other than on business day during

normal business hours where such notice is to be received or on the second business day

following the date of mailing by express courier service fully prepaid addressed to such address

or upon actual receipt of such mailing whichever shall first occur

3.3 Amendment Provision The term INoteU and all reference thereto as used

throughout this instrument shall mean this instrument as originally executed or if later amended

or supplemented then as so amended or supplemented

oi



3.4 Assignability This Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its

successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the Holder and its successors and assigns

3.5 Cost of Collection If default is made in the payment of this Note

Borrower shall pay the Holder hereof reasonable costs of collection including reasonable

attorneys fees

3.6 Governing Law This Note shall be governed by and construed in

accordance with the laws of the State of New York Any action brought by either party against

the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in

the civil or state courts of New York or in the federal courts located in New York Both parties

and the individual signing this Agreement on behalf of the Borrower agree to submit to the

jurisdiction of such courts The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party

its reasonable attorneys fees and costs

3.7 Maximum Payments Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to

establish or require the payment of rate of interest or other charges in excess of the maximum

permitted by applicable law In the event that the rate of interest required to be paid or other

charges hereunder exceed the maximum permitted by such law any payments in excess of such

maximum shall be credited against amounts owed by the Borrower to the Holder and thus

refunded to the Borrower

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Borrower has caused this Note to be signed in its name by an

authorized officer as of the 11th day of February 2009

Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp

By
Name Camille Barbone

Title Chief Operating Officer

WITNESS

IOZ



Schedule of Loans and Payments

Date Amount of Loan Amount of Principal Paid Balance Remaining Unpaid Notation Made By

4/14/2009 $10000

4/28/2009 $20000

6/12/2009 $20000

ODMA\PCDOCS\GHCDOCS\695593\1
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Principal Amount $20000 Issue Date June 15 2009

NOTE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED Stadium Entertainment Holding Corp Nevada corporation

hereinafter called Borrower hereby promises to pay to the order of Frank Barbone an

individual the Holder with an address at 1-73 69th Street Middle Village NY 11379 without

demand the lesser of sum of Twenty Thousand $20000 Dollars and ii the aggregate

principal amount of all loans made by the Holder under this Note as indicated on the schedule

attached hereto thereon on the earlier of September 30 2009 or iithe date that is five

days after the Borrower has received gross proceeds of $1000000 or more from private

placement to be conducted by August 2009 the Maturity Date

ARTICLE

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Maturity Principal and accrued interest under this Note shall become due and

payable on the Maturity Date Borrower may prepay this note at any time

1.2 Interest Rate Simple interest payable on this Note shall accrue at the annual rate

often percent 10% and be payable at the request of the Holder upon or after each conversion of

principal pursuant to Article II and on the Maturity Date accelerated or otherwise when the

principal and remaining accrued but unpaid interest shall be due and payable or sooner as

described below

ARTICLE II

EVENT OF DEFAULT

The occurrence of any of the following events of default Event of Default

shall at the option of the Holder hereof make all sums of principal and interest then remaining

unpaid hereon and all other amounts payable hereunder immediately due and payable upon

demand without presentment or grace period all of which hereby are expressly waived except

as set forth below

2.1 Failure to Pay Principal or Interest The Borrower fails to pay any

installment of principal interest or other sum due under this Note when due and such failure

continues for period often 10 business days after the due date

2.2 Receiver or Trustee The Borrower shall make an assignment for the

benefit of creditors or apply for or consent to the appointment of receiver or trustee for it or for

substantial part of its property or business or such receiver or trustee shall otherwise be

appointed without the consent of the Borrower is not dismissed within sixty 60 days of

appointment



2.3 Bankruptcy Bankruptcy insolvency reorganization or liquidation

proceedings or other proceedings or relief under any bankruptcy law or any law or the issuance

of any notice in relation to such event for the relief of debtors shall be instituted by or against the

Borrower and if instituted against Borrower are not dismissed within forty-five 45 days of

initiation

ARTICLE III

MISCELLANEOUS

3.1 Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver No failure or delay on the part of

Holder hereof in the exercise of any power right or privilege hereunder shall operate as waiver

thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power right or privilege preclude

other or further exercise thereof or of any other right power or privilege All rights and remedies

existing hereunder are cumulative to and not exclusive of any rights or remedies otherwise

available

3.2 Notices All notices demands requests consents approvals and other

communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and unless otherwise

specified herein shall be personally served iideposited in the mail registered or certified

return receipt requested postage prepaid iii delivered by reputable air courier service with

charges prepaid or iv transmitted by hand delivery telegram or facsimile addressed as set

forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written

notice Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be

deemed effective upon hand delivery or delivery by facsimile with accurate confirmation

generated by the transmitting facsimile machine at the address or number designated below if

delivered on business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received or

the first business day following such delivery ifdelivered other than on business day during

normal business hours where such notice is to be received or on the second business day

following the date of mailing by express courier service fully prepaid addressed to such address

or upon actual receipt of such mailing whichever shall first occur

3.3 Amendment Provision The term Note and all reference thereto as used

throughout this instrument shall mean this instrument as originally executed or if later amended

or supplemented then as so amended or supplemented

3.4 Assignability This Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its

successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the Holder and its successors and assigns

3.5 Cost of Collection If default is made in the payment of this Note

Borrower shall pay the Holder hereof reasonable costs of collection including reasonable

attorneys fees

3.6 Governing Law This Note shall be governed by and construed in

accordance with the laws of the State of New York Any action brought by either party against

the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in



the civil or state courts of New York or in the federal courts located in New York Both parties

and the individual signing this Agreement on behalf of the Borrower agree to submit to the

jurisdiction of such courts The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party

its reasonable attorneys fees and costs

3.7 Maximum Payments Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to

establish or require the payment of rate of interest or other charges in excess of the maximum

permitted by applicable law In the event that the rate of interest required to be paid or other

charges hereunder exceed the maximum permitted by such law any payments in excess of such

maximum shall be credited against amounts owed by the Borrower to the Holder and thus

rcfImded to the Borrower

3.8 Convertible Note Adjustment By executing this Note the Holder

acknowledges that Holder advanced to Borrower only $30000 of the $50000 contemplated by

the Bridge LoanlConvertible Note dated February 232009 and therefore only $30000 principal

amount is outstanding under such note

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Borrower has caused this Note to be signed in its name by an

authorized officer as of the 15th day of June 2009

ODMA\PCDOCS\GHCDOCS\714s64\1

By
Name

Title

Agreed and Acknowledged

tL1
Frank Barbone

Ln




